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Booker Independent School District
Name of School District

CERTIFICATE OF BOARD

Lipscomb
County

l 4890 1

Co.-Dist. Number

We, the undersigned, certifu that the attached annual financial reports of the above-named school district

were reviewed and (check one) X approved disapproved for the year ended August 3 | , 2020

such school district on the I 1th day of February 202 l.

Signature of Board President



P.O. BOX 7832

AMARILLO, TEXAS 79114

(806) 3s8-8071
(806) 358-818s FAX

MARK IíI-F, CPA

KILE & CO., P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Basic Financial Statements Accompanied by Required Supplementary Information,
Supplementary Information, and Other Information

INDBPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Booker Independent School District
P.O. Box 288
Booker, Texas 79005

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Booker Independent School District as of and for the year ended
August 31,2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the X'inancial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
frnancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence \rye have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements refened to above present fairly, in all rnaterial respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Booker Independent School District as of August31,2020, and the respective changes in financial position
and for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
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Other Matters

Re quired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis, the Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund, Schedule of District's
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (TRS), Schedule of District Contributions for Pensions - TRS,
Schedule of District Contributions for Other Post-Employment Benefits - TRS and Schedule of District OPEB
contributions to TRS as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.

Such information, although not a part of the basic fìnancial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic

financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledgé we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Booker Independent School District's basic financial statements. The introductory section,

combining and individual nonmajor fund fînancial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic

financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the

basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards

generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a

whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued my report dated February 8, 2021, on

my consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.

That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

)rr" vü,,/L
Amarillo, Texas
February 8,2021



Management's Discussiou and Analysis
Booker lndependent School District

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In this section of the Annual Financialand Compliance Repoft, we, the n-ìaltagers of Booker lndependent
Schoof District, discuss and analyze the District's financial performance for the fiscal year ended August
31,2020. Please read it in conjunction with the independent auditors'report on page 4, and the District's
Basic Financial Statements, which begin on page 13.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The District continues to experience son'ìe fluctuation in student enl'ollment. Sntaller enrollment wouÌd
reduce state funding. Due to this trend, the District continues to monitor expenditures to lnitigate
possible deficits fol' future years. The goal and purpose of these steps were to prevent any significant
decrease to the undesignated ft¡nd balance.

The District's net position decreased by $219 thousand as a result of this yeaL's operations.

During the year, tlie District had expenses that were $88 thousand less than the $5.623 million generated
in tax and other revenues for governrnental programs. T'his compares to last year when expenses were
rrrore tlran reveuues by $202 thousand.

The General Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $3.I 79 million.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual repoft consists of a series of financial statements. The governnrent-wide financial statetnents
include the Statenent of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (orr pages 13 and 14). These
provide information about the activities of the District as a whole and present a longer-term view of the
District's property and debt obligations and other financial uratters. They reflect the flow of total
econolnic I'esources irr a uranller similar to the financial reports of a business enterprise.

Fund financial statements (starting on page l5) report the District's operations in lnore detail than the
governnlent-wide statements by providing information about the District's most signilìcant funds. For
governmental activities, these statements tell how services were financed in the shoft term as well as
what resources remain for future spending. They teflect tlie flow of current financial resources, aud
sLtpply the basis for tax levies and the appropriations br"rdget. The remaining statements, fiduciary
statellteltts, provide financial information about activities for which the District acts solely as a trustee or
agent for the benefit ofthose outside ofthe district.

The notes to the financial statements (starting on page 20) plovide narrative explanations or additional
data needed for full disclosure in the government-wide statements or the fund 1Ìnancial staternents.

The combiuing staternents for nonmajor funds contain even more infonnation about the District's
individual firnds. These are not reqr,rired by TEA. The sections labeled TEA Required Schedules and
Federal Awards Section contain data used by monitoring or regulatory agencies for assurallce that the
District is using funds supplied in compliance with the terrns of grants.



Re¡rorting the District as a Whole

The Statemenl. of Net Posìtiott and the Stntement of Activities

The analysis of the Distl'ict's overall financial condition and operations begins on page 13. Its pritnary
purpose is to show whether the District is better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities. The

Statement of Net Position includes all tlie District's position and liabilities at the end of the year while the

Statement of Activities includes all the revellues and expeuses generated by the District's operations
during the year. 'Ihese apply the accrual basis of accourrting which is the basis used by private sector

cornpanies.

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken iuto accoLrnt regardless of when cash is
received or paid. The District's revenues are divided into those provided by outside parties who share the

costs of soÍì'ìe prograrns, such as tuition received from students from outside the district and grants

provided by the U.S. Departrnent of Education to assist children with disabilities or fi'om disadvantaged

backgrounds (prograrn revenues), and reveuues plovidecl by the taxpayers or by TEA in equalization
funding processes (general revenues). All the District's assets are reported whether they serve the current
year or future years. Liabilities are cousidered regardless of whether they must be paid in the curl'etlt or
future years.

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in them. The District's net position
(the differeuce between assets and liabilities) provide one rrìeasure of the District's financial health, or
financial position. Over tilne, increases or decreases in the District's net position are one indicator of
whether its f,nlancial health is improving or deteriorating. To fully assess the overall healtli of the

District, however, you should consider nonfinancial factors as well, such as changes in the District's
average daily attendance or its property tax base and the condition of the District's facilities.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the District has one kind of activity:

Governmental activiries-Most of the District's basic services al'e reported here, including the
instruction, counseling, co-curricular activities, food services, transpotlatiou, tnaiutenaltce,

community services, and general administration. Propefty taxes, tuition, fees, and state and

federal grants finance most of these activities.

Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements begin on page 15 and provide detailed information aboutthe most
significant funds-not the District as a whole. Laws and corltracts require the District to establish

solne I'unds, sucl.r as grants received under the Every Student Succeeds Act fi'orn the U.S.
Departurent of Education. The District's administration establishes nlany other funds to help it
control and manage money for particular purposes (like canipus activities). The District has olte

kind of fund-govenlrrental fund.

Govenlnental funds-Most of the District's basic services are reported in govet'nmental funds.
These use modified accrual accounting (a method that rneasures tlte receipt and disbursement of
cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash) artd report balances that
are available l'or fufure spending. The governrnental fund statements provide a cletailed short-
term view of the District's general operations and the basic services it provides. We descritre the

differences between goverumental activities (reported in the Statenent of Net Position ancl the
Statement of Activities) and governmental filnds in reconciliation scheclules l'ollowing eacll ol'
the fund financial stateurents.



Ihe District as Trustce

Reportitrg tlte Distt'ict's Fiduciary Responsìbilìties

The District is the tt'ustee, or fìdr-rciary, for urouey raised by student activities. All of the l)istrict's
fiduciary activities are reported in the Statenent of Fiduciary Net Position on page l9. We exclude these
resources fi'om the District's other financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to
finance its operations. The District is only responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds
are used for their intended purposes.

GOVERNMBNT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Our analysis focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table II) of the District's
govenmental activities.

Net position of the District's governrnental activities decreased from $2.96 lnillion to $2.141 nillion.
Unrestricted net position - the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations
without constraints established by debt coveuants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirelnents - was
$164 thousand at August31,2020.

Table I
Booker Independent School District

NET POSITION
in thousands

Governmental
Activities

2020 2019

Current and othel assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Long-ternr Liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Del'erred inflow of resources

Net Position:

Invested ir-r capital assets net of related debt
Restrictecl

Unrestricted
Total net position

3,789 $

2,568
3,983
2,741

6,357 6,724

I.)''

2,629

s40
810

2,803
3,169 3,613

1,1'79 948

2,568
l0

163

2,747

6

213

2,9602,741



Table ll
Booke r Independent School Dis trict

CI{ANGES IN NBT POSITION
in thousands

Governmetrtal
Activities

2020 2019

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services
Operating grants and contributions

General Revenues:

Maintenance and operations taxes

State aide formula grants

Grants and Contributions not restricted
to specific functions
Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous

Special Item - (Use)

Total Revenue

Expenses:
Instruction, curriculut¡ and media

services
lnstructional and school leadership

Studerf support services

Child nutrition
Co-curric ular activities
Cene la I administration
PIant maintenance, security &. data
processing

Cornntunity services
Payments Related to Shared Services

Arrangemnts
Intergovernmental charges

Total Expenses

Increase / Decrease in net position

Begimring net position

Ending net position

43$
925

2,416
2,369

J5

64
(ss)

54

749

2,198

2,133

5J

117

34

(2s) (202)

5,770 5.116

? ?59

346

l3l
241

383

s01

881

40

74

J1

2,899

39s
131

238
356
403

671

48

52

37

5,989 5,236

(21e) (11e)

3,0792-960

2,741 2,960



'Ihe District's property tax rate decreased to $ 1 .0684 per $ I 00 valuation.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $5.989 million. I-Iowever, as shown in the Staternent
ol'Activities on page 14, flte amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through
Districttaxes was only $2.416 million because $43 thousand of the costs were paid by those who directly
benefited from the programs and $925 thousand were paid by other govemments and organizations that
subsidized ceftain programs with grants and contributions.

THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

As the District completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on Exhibit
C-l) reported a combined fund balance of $3.202 rnillion. Included in this year's total change in fund
balance is an increase of $59 thousand in the District's Gelleral Fund. The primary reasous for the
General Fund's increase mirror the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance
highlighted on page 17.

Over the course of the year, the Board of 'l'rustees revised the District's budget three tilnes. The
ameudureuts moved funds from programs that did not need all the resources originally appropriated to
thenr to prograûìs with resource needs.

The District's General Fund balance of $3.179 rnillion reported on page 15 differs from the General
Fund's budgetary fund balance of $3.022 rnillion reported in the budgetary comparison schedule on page
47. This is plincipally due to less than expected reveuues described above.

CAPITAL ASSBT AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2020,tlte District l^tad89.22l rnillion invested in a broad range of capital assets, including
facilities and equiprnent for instruction, transportation, athletics, administration, and maiutenance.

The District had additions of $71 thousancl and no deletions in the currelrt year.

The District's fiscal year 2021 capital budget calls for no new additions. More detailed information
about the District's capital assets is presented in Note F to the financial statelnents.

t0



trCONOMIC FACTOIìS AND NBXT YEAR'S IìUDGETS AND IIATES

The District's elected and appointed officials considered rnany factors when setting the fiscal-year 2020
bLrdget and tax rates. One of those factol's is the local econonry. The District's population growth
increased modestly duling 2007-2020. ìnterest rates decreased moderately, making earnings on

iuvestments minimal.

These indicators wel'e taken into accor-urt when adopting the General Fund budget for 2021. Amounts
available for appropriation in tlle General Funcl budget are $4.569 rnillion, a decrease of $666 thousand
over the 2020 budget of $5.235 million. The District will use its revenues to ftnance progran-ìs currently
irr place. The District has aclded no prograns 1o the 2021 budget. If these estimates are realized, the
District's budgetary General Fund balance is expected to remain unchanged by the close of 2021. More
impoftantly, however, this willhave treen accomplished in spite of unfunded mandates.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMBNT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, custorners, and investors and

creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for'
the money it receives. If yoLr have questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact the District's business office, at Booker ISD, P.O. Box 288, Booker, Texas 79005.

ll



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EXI'IIBIT A-I
I]OOI(ER ISD

STATI]MENT OF Ngf POSITION
AUGUST 3I"2O2O

Data

Control

Codes

Prinlary Govcrnnlent

Governmental

Activities

ASSI'IS
I I l0 Cash ancl Cash Equivalents
I 120 Cun'cnt Invcstnrcuts
1220 Propcrty 'l axes - Delinquent
1230 Allowance for Uncollectible'Iaxes
1240 Duc florr Other Govemnrents
1250 Accruecl Intercst
1290 Other Iìcceivables, Not
I 300 Invelitories
1490 Othcr Cullcnt Asscls

Capital Assets:

I510 L,and

1520 IlLrildinss. Net
1530 Fulnitule and lìquipment, Net

1000 'I'otal Assets

DIIFI'IIIIED O IJ]ìILO \\/ S O F IIIN O URC I.S

1'705 Del'elled Outflow Iìelatecl to TRS Pension
1706 DeJèrIed Outllorv Iìelated to ]'lls OPEB

1700 Total Delbn'ed Outllows of lìesources

LIÂBII,IlIILS
2110 Accounts Payable
2160 Accrued Wages Payable
2180 Due to Othel Governrrents
2200 Acclued Expenses

Noncullcnl Liabilit ics:

2540 Net Pension Liability (Distlict's Share)

2545 Ncr OPIlll Lìability (Disrrict's Share)

2000 Total Liabilities

DIIFI'IÌIIDD INI,],O W S O Iì RTìS O I.]IìC ES

2605 Defcl'r'ecl Inflou, Ilelatecl to 1'lìS Pension
2606 Defe|r'ed Inflow Iìelated to TIìS OPEII

2600 'l-otal Delèn'cd ìnflows of lìesources

NI'I' PO S I]IO N

3200 Net Investnrcnt in Capital Assets
3820 Restlictccl lor Iledefal ancl State Pfog'anrs

3900 Unrestlictecl

3000 l olal Nct l'osition

I'he noles to thc lìnancial stalen"rcuts ale an integ'al palt of'this statcn.ìcnt.

t3

3,653,634
15 5?5

60,729
( r 3,500)

44,213
809

l5
7.542

100

42,053
2,233,345

292,124

6,3 56,5 89

s46,303
1{t6.346

732,649

90,332
207,832
212,6'79

28,',741

t,106,103
t,523,269

3, r 68,956

264,379
914,646

I,179,02s

2^561,522
9,690

1(¡3,7 45

2,740,957



I]OOKI]R ISD
STATEMENI' OF ACTIVII'IES

FORTIIEYEAR ENDED AUGUST 3I,2O2O

ì)r'ogram Revenues

Ext'ilBil'B-l

Net (llxpense)
Revenue and

Changes in Net
P ositionData

Control

Codes

I

[ìxpen ses

3

Charges fir
Selvices

46
Operating Primaly Gor'.

Grants and Govelllurental
Contribulious Act¡vities

Primary Govern¡nent:

GOVERNM ENTA L A CTIVITI ES :

I t hrstruction fì

12 lnstructional Resources and Media Services
I 3 Curriculum and ìnstluctional Staff Developurent
2 I Instructional læadership
23 School læadership
3l Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services
33 Health Services
34 Student (Pupil) Transportation
35 Food Services
36 E{racurricular Activities
4l General Administration
51 Facilities Maintenance and Operations
5z Security and Monitoring Services
6l Cornmunity Services
93 Payments Related to Shared Services An'angernents
99 Other Intergovemmelltal Charges

[TP] TOTAL PR]MARY GOVERNMENT:

l'R

CN

Nß

NE

5,988,720 $ 42,967 S 92s,325 (5,020,428)

3,268,759 $ì

30,498

59.9{ì5

51,750

293,63s
86,358

3,1r5
41,214

240,899
382,874

s1t,249
877,927

3,490
39,675
73,s20
17'7',1)

t3,947 S

ts,izt
t0,s97

498,082
3fì6

r,93 1

3s,042
28,294

7,987

2,481

237,460
13,505

35,769

33,146
2,990

28.252

(2,756,730)
(30,r 12)

(58,054)
( 1 6,708)

(26s,341)
(78,371)

(3,1 I 5)
(3 8,733)

14,984
(358,772)

(465,480)
(844,78 r )

(500)
(11,423)
(73,s20)
(33,772)

Data
Control CreneralRevenues:
Codes

I axes:

Ml' Propelty Taxes, lævied for Cieneral Purposes
SF State Aid - Forrnula G'ants
GC Gl'ants aud Contributions not Restricted
lll Investment Ealnings
Ml Misoellaneous L¡cal and httermediate Revenue
S2 Special ìtem - (Use)

2,415,597

2,369,354
32,824
64,393

(5s,403)
(2s,428)

Total Creneral Revenues & Special Items

Change in Net Position

Net Position - lleginning

Net Position - Erding

4,801,337

(2r9,091)

2,9ó0,048

2,'.140,9s7

'Ihe notes to the íÌnancial statelrents arc an integral part ofthis statelneltt
14



EXHIBIT C-I
BOOKER ISD

BALANCE SHEET

COVERNMENTAI-FUNDS
AUGUST 31,2020

Data

Control

Codes

l0
General

Funcl

Other

Funds

l'otal
GoveLnmental

Fr¡nds

ASSITTS

I I Ì0 Cash and Cash Equivalents
1120 Investlnelrts - Curent
1220 Plopelty Taxes - Delinquent
1230 Allowance fol Uncollectible Taxes

1240 Due from Other Governmellts

1250 Accrued Interest
t2(t0 Due fi'onr Other Funds
t290 Other Receivables
1300 Inventories
l4g0 Other Cun'ent Assets

3,644,880 $
?5 5?5

60,729
(r 3,500)

r 3,090

809

14,282

t5

8,754 $

v,izt

t,iqz
100

3,653,634

35,525
60,729

(r 3,500)
44,213

809

14,282

15

7,542

100

l 000

2tt0
2160
2170

2180

2200

2000

Total Assets

I,IAI]II-ITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Cnvernments
Accrued Expenditures

Total Liabilities

3,755,830 $ 47,519 $ 3,803,349

90,324
201,513

210,289
)1 1))

8$
6,319

14,282
2,390
1,019

90,332

207,832
14,282

212,679

28,741

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCRS

2(t01 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

2600 Total Defened Inflows of Resources

ITUND BALANCES
Nonspendable Fund Balance:

3410 Inventolies
Restricted Fund Balance:

3450 Federal ol State Funds Grant Restrictioll
Assigned Fund Balance:

3-590 Other Assigned Fund Balance

3600 Unassigned Fund Balance

3000 Total Fund Balances

4000 Total Liabilities, Defen'ed lnflows & Fund Balauces

47,229

47,229

3,178,753

3,178,153

I'he notcs tr¡ the financiaì stater'ì1ents are atr intcgral part ol'this statelneltt

l5

529,848 24,018 553,866

47,229

L'7 )1q

7,542

9,690

6,269

3,178,753

23.501 3,202,254

3,7ss,830$ 47,519S 3,803,349

7,542

9,690

6,269



BOOKER ìSD EXIIII]IT C-2
IìDCONCILIAI'ION OI.- THE GOVERNMEN'T'AL FUNDS BALANCE SI-IEET TO TI-IE

STATEMENT OF NET POS]TION
AUGUST 31,2020

Total Funcl Balances - Governmental Funds $ 3,202,254

I Capital assetsusedingovernmental activitiesareuotfinancial resourcesandthereforearenot 2,741 ,308
reported iu governmental ft¡nds. At the beginning of the year, the cost of these assets was

$9,156,496 and the accumulated depreciation was $(6,415,188). In addition, lorrg-term
liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and, therefore
are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The net effect of including tlre beginning balances for
capital assets (net of depleciation) and long-term debt in the governmental activities is to
increase net position.

2 Currentyearcapitaloutlays and long-ter'rr debtprincipal payments are expenditures in the fund 71,000
financial statel'r1er1ts, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and reducticlns in
Iong-terttr debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net e1'fect of including the
2020 capital outlays and debt plincipal payrnents is to increase net position.

3 lncfuded in the items related to debt is the recognition of the District's proportionate share of the $24,179)
net pension liability required by GASB 68. The net position related to TRS included a deferred
resoulce outflow in the amount of $546,303, a deferred resource inflow in the amount of
5264,379, and a net perrsion Iiability in the amount of $1,106,103. This resulted in a decrease in
net position.

4 Included in the items related to debt is the recognition of the District's proportionate share of the (2,251,869)
net OPEB liability required by GASB 75. The net position related to TRS included a deferred
resource outflow in the amount of $ 1 86,346, a deferred resource inflow in the amount of
5914,646, and a net OPEB liability in the amount of $1 ,523,569. This resulted in a decrease in
net position.

5 The 2020 depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. The net effect of the current (244,786)
year's depreciation is to decrease net position.

6 Various other reclassifications and eliminations are uecessary to convert from the modified 47,ZZg
accrual basis ofaccounting to accrual basis ofaccounting. These include recognizing
unavailable revellue frour property taxes as revellue, reclassifying the proceeds of bond sales as

an increase in bonds payable, and recoguizingthe liabilities associated with rnaturing long-ternr
debt and interest. The net effect ofthese reclassifications and recognitions is to increase net
position.

19 Net Position of Governmental Activities s 2,740,957

'l-hc notcs to thc fìnancial statcnicnls arc an inte¡¡'al part of this statel.nent
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I]XFIIBIT C-3
BOOKER ISD

S]-ATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CI-IANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR T}-II] YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2O2O

Data

Control

Codes

l0
Gen era I

Iìrul d

Other

Funds

'I'ot al

Governrlerrtal

Fun ds

REVENT]ES:

5700 Total L¡cal and Intennediate Sources

5800 State Program Revenues

5900 Fedelal ProgramRevenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
In struction
Instructional Resources and Media Services

Curriculum and Instructional Staff Developnìent
Instructional læadersh ip

School læadership
Gu idance, Couns eling, an d Evalu ation Setvices
Health Seruices

Student (Pupil) Transportatiorr
Food Services

E*racumicular Activities
General Administration
Facilities Maintenance and Operations
Security and Monitoling Selvices
Community Services

Intergovernmental:
0093 Payments to Fiscal Agent/Member Districts of SSA

0099 Otherlntergoventmental Charges

6030 Total Expenditures

I 100 Excess (Defìciency) of Revenues Over (Under)
E>penditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

7gl5 Transfers In
891 I Transfers Out (Use)

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

SPECIALITEMS:
8s12 Special Item - (Use)

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances

0100 Fund Balance - Septernber I (Beginning)

3000 Fund llalance - August 3l (hding)

5,026,068 509,r01 5,535,169

97 "958 (9,996) 87,962

13,714 13,714
(13,7 t4)(t3 ,7 t 4)

(13,114) 13,714

(2s,428) (2s,428)

2,469,423 S

2,6t3,787
40,tì r 6

46,67s $

168,740

2{ì3,690

2,516,098

2,782,52"1

324,506

-5 020 5,t24,026 499,105 5,623,131

001 l

0012

00 r3

0021

0023

003 I

0033

0034

003 5

003 6

004 I

005 I

0052

006 I

2,759,045

3Q,27Íl

55,579
15,458

272,957

8 r ,029
3,115

43,131

326,649

465,320
863,595

500

2,120

73,520

33,7',|2

213,744

r,931

32.824

228,751

z,iso
28,861

2,972,789

30,278

57,5 I 0

48,282

272,957

81,029

3,115

43,t31
228,751

326,649

465,320

863,595

3,490

30,981

73,520

33,772

58,81 6

3,t19,937

3,718

r9,783

62,534

3,139,720

3,178,753 s 23,s01 $ 1,202,254

I'he notes to the financial staten'ìents ale an integral part o1'this statelrent.
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BOOKER ISD EXì'IIBIT C-4
I{ECONCìI-IATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, I]XPENDITURES,

AND C]jANGES ìN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF AC'TIVI"I'IES
IìOR TI-ìE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31.2020

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 62,534

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expeuditures in the fund 71,000
financial staternerlts, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and reductions in long-
tertn debt itr the government-wide financial statemeuts. The net effect of removing fhe 2020 capital
outlays and debt principal payments is to increase net position.

Depreciation is not recognized as an expeuse in governlnental funds since it does not require the use (244,786)
ofcurrent financial resources. The net effect ofthe current year's depreciation is to decrease net
position.

Valior"ts other reclassifications and elirninations are necessary to convert fi'om the modified accrual l4,l7Z
basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include recognizing unavailable revenue
fi'om propet'ty taxes as reveuue, adjusting current year revenue to show the revenue earned fì'orn the
cllrrent year's tax levy, reclassifying the proceeds of bond sales, and recognizing the liabilities
associated with maturirrg long-tenn debt and interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and
recognitions is to increase net position.

GASB 68 required that certain plan expenditures be de-expended and recorded as deferred resource (143,420)
outflows. T'hese contributions made after tlie uleasaurelRent date of the plan caused the clrange in
ending net position to increase by $81,114. Contributions made before the measurement date and
during the previous fiscal year were also expended dand recorded as a reduction in net pensiorr
liability. This caused a decrease in net position totaling 574,476. Finally, tlie proportionate share of
the TRS pension experlse on the plan as a whole had to be recorded. The net pension expense
decreased the change in net position by $150,058. The net result is a decrease in the change in net
position.

GASB 75 required that certain plan expenditures be de-expended and recorded as deferred resource 21,409
outflows. These contributious made after the lreasurelnent date of the plan causecl the change in
ending net position to increase by $26,81 1 . Contributions made before the measurement clate and
during the previor"rs fiscal year were also expeuded and recorded as a refuction in net pension
liability. This caused a decrease in net position totaling 522,865. Firrally, the proportionate share of
the TRS pension expense on the plan as a whole had to be recorded. The net pension expense
decreased the change in net position by $(17,463). The net result is an increase in the change in net
position.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (219,091)

I hc notcs to thc linancial statcrxcnls alc an integ'al palt ol'this statcnlcnl
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EXI-ìtBtT tir
BOOKERISD

STATEM ENl- OF FIDUCIARY NET POS]TION
FIDUC]ARYFUNDS
AUGUST 31,2020

Agency

Fund

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

The notes to the financial statcmcnts alc an integral part ofthis st¿ìtelltent.
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BOOKEIì INDI]PENDENT SCIJOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2020

I. SUMMARYOF'SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIBS

Booker Independent School District (the "Distlict") is a public educational agency operating under the applicable
laws and regulations of the State of Texas. lt is governed by a seven-member Board of Trustees (the "Board")
elected by registered voters of the District. The District prepares its basic financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and
other authoritative sources identified in Stalement ott Aucliting Standards No. 76 of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants; and it cornplies with the requirements of the appropriate velsion of Texas Education
Agerrcy's Finuncial Accountability Sysl.em Resource Guide (the "Resource Guide") and the requirements of
contracts and grants of agencies from which it receives funds.

Pensirvts. The fiduciary net position of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) has been determined
using the flow of economic resources llreasurerrent focus and full accrual basis of accounting. This includes for
purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, peusiorr expense, and information about assets, liabilities and additions toldeductions from
TRS's fiduciary net position. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
wlren due and payable in accordance with the benefit tenns. Investments are repofted at fair value.

Other Post-Entployment Benefits. The fiduciary net position of the Teacher Retirement Systern of Texas (TRS)
TRS Care Plan has been determined using the flow of economic resoul'ces rneasurerTìeut focus and full accrual
basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of
resoulces and deferred inflows of resources related to other post-employment benefits, OPEB expense, and
information about assets, liabilities, and additions toldeductions from TRS Care's fiduciary net position. Benefit
payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. There are no investments as
this a pay-as-you-go plan and all cash is lield in a cash accouut.

Booker lndependent Scliool District applies Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No.
J2,Fair Value Measurement aud Application. GASB StaternentNo. T2 provides guidance for deterrnirring a fair
value measuremertt for reporting purposes and applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to
all fair value measuremeuts.

A. RBPORTING BNTITY

The Board of Trustees (the "Board") is elected by the public and it has the authority to nrake decisions, appoint
administrators ancl lranagers, and significantly influence operations. It also has the prirnary accountability for
fìscal matters. Therefore, the District is a fìnancial reporting entity as defined by the Govemrneutal Accounting
Standards Boal'd ("GASB") in its StatementNo. 74,"The Financial Reporting Entity." There are uo courponent
units included within the reporting entity.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDB AND F'UND FINANCIAL STATtrMDNTS

I'he Statement of Net Positiou and the Statement of Activities are government-wicle financial statenrents. They
report inforuration on all ol the Booker Independent School District nonfiduciary activities with most of the
interfirrrd activities removed. Goverrunental aclittitie,ç include prograrrs supported primarily by taxes, State
foundation funds, grants and other intergovernrnental revenues. The Statement of Activities demonstrates how
other people or entities that participate in progralns the District o¡rerates have shared in the payrnent of the direct
costs. The "clrarges for services" colunln includes paymerrts made by parlies that purchase, Lrse, or directly benefit
lì'ont goods or services provided by a given functioll or segrrerlt of the Distlict. Examplcs include tuition paid by
stuclents not resicling in the clistrict, sohool lr:uch charges, etc.
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C.

BOOKER INDEPENDENT SCHOOL D]STRICT
NOTES TO TI-IE FINANC]AL STATEMENTS
FOR Tì_IE YEAR ENDED AUGUS]'31,2020

The "grants and contributions" colulrn includes alnounts paid by organizations outside the District to help meet
the operational or capital requirements of a given function. Exarnples include grants under the Elementary and
Secondary Education Act. l1'a reverlue is not a prograln leveuue, it is a general revertue used to support all of the
District's functions. Taxes are always general reverlues.

Interfund activities between governtlental funds appear as due to/due from on tlle Governlnental Fund Balance
Sheet and as other resources and other uses ou the governmental fund Statement of lìevenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance. Al1 interfuud transactions betweell govenllnental funds are eliminated on the
government-wide statemellts. Interfund activities between governmeutal ftrnds and fiduciary funds rel-nain as due

toldue from on the government-wide Statement of Activities.

The fund financial statements provide reports on the financial condition and results of opelations for two fund
categories - governtxental and liduciary. Since the l'esources in the fiduciary funds callllot be used for District
operations, they are not included in the government-wide statements. The District considers solre governlnental
funds major and repolts their financial condition and results of operations in a separate columu.

MtrASURBMENT FOCUSO BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PR[SENTATION

The government-wide financial statements use the economic resources ureasurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the tirning of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which
they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requiremeuts
irnposed by the provider have been met.

Governurental fund financial statements use tlre current financial resources rneasureffìent focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Witli this lneasul'ement focus, only current assets, current liabilities and fund
balances are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present net increases and

decreases in current assets (i.e., reveuues and other financing sources and expenditures and other financing uses).

The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become
both measurable and available, and it recognizes expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability
is incurred, if measurable, except for unmatured interest and principal on long-term debt, wliich is recognized
when due. The expenditures related to certajn compensated absences and claims and judgrnents are recogrrized
when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The District
considers all revenues available if they are collectible within 60 days after year-end.

Revenues fi'orn local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues arrcl revenues received
fi'om the State are recognized under the "susceptible-to-accrual" concept. Miscellaneous revellues are recorded as

revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment
earnings are recordeci as earned, since they are both measurable and available.

Grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the provisious of the grant.

Accordingly, wheu such funds are received, they are recorded as deferred revenues until related and authorized
expenditures have been made. If balances have not been expendecl by the end of the plo.ject period, grantors
sometinres require the District to refirnd all or part of the unused amount.
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BOOKER INDì]PENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO TIJE FINANCìAL S]'ATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAIì I]NDED AUGUST 31,2020

The Proprietary Fund Types and Fiduciary Funds are accourlted for on a flow of economic resources
lneasurenlent focus ancl utilize the accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting recognizes revenLles il.l

the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable and expenses in the accounting periocl in
which they are incurred aud become measurable. The District applies all GASB prorlouucernents as well as the
Financial Accouuting Standards Board pronouncerìlents issued on or before Novembel'30, 1989, unless these
pronouncen'ìents conflict or contradict GASB prollouucelneuts. With this lneasurerrent focus, all assets and all
liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the fund Statement of Net Position. The
fund equity is segregated into invested in capital assets net of related debt, restricted net position, aud unrestricted
net position.

Agency Funds utilize the accrual basis ofaccounting but do not have a rneasureurent focus as they only repoft
assets and liabilities.

D. FUND ACCOUNTING

The District repoñs the following nrajor governrnental funds:

1. The General Fund - The general fund is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
fillancial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Additionally, the District reports the following fund type(s):

Governmental Funds:

Special Revenue Funds - The District accounts for resources restricted to, or designated for, specific
purposes by the District or a grantol iu a special revenue fund. Most Federal and some State financial
assistance is accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund, and sometimes unused balances must be returned
to the grantor at the close ofspecified project periods.

Fiduciary Funds:

Agency Funds - The District accounts for resources held for others in a custodial capacity in agency
funds. The District's Agency Fund is the Student Activity Fund. Financial resources for the agency are
recorded as assets and liabilities; therefore, these funds do not include revenues and expenditures and
have no fund equity. l-he Student Activity Fund exists with the explicit approval of, and is subject to
revocation by, the District's Board of Trustees.

1.

1
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B.

BOOKEìì INDEPENDENl' SCI-IOOL DìSTRìCI-
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENI'S
FOR TI.ìE YEAR ENDED AUGUS]'31,2020

OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIBS

l. For purposes of the statement of cash flows for proprietary and similar fund types, the District
considers highly liquid investments to be cash equivalents if they have a rnaturity of three months or
less when purchased. The District currently has no Proprietary Type Funds.

Inventories - The District reports inventories of supplies at weighted average cost includirrg
cousumable maintenance, instructional, office, athletic, and transportation itetns. Supplies are

recorded as expenditures wheu they are consumed. Inventories of food commodities are recorded at

market values supplied by the Texas Departnrent of Iluman Services. Although commodities are

received at no cost, their fair market value is supplied by the Texas Depaftment of Human Services
and recolded as inventory and unearned reveuue when received. When requisitioned, inventory and

unearned reveuue are relieved, expenditures are chargecl, aucl revetrue is recognized for an equal
arnount.

Long-term Debt - In the government-wide financial statements, long-tenn debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities. Bond prerniums and

discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.
Bonds payable are reported net ofthe applicable bond preurium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governrnental fund types recogllized bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amouttt of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other fìnaucing
sources wliile discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. lssuattce costs,

whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Vacation and Sick Leave - It is tlie District's policy to permit some etnployees to accumulate earned

but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave

since tlie District does not have a policy to pay any arnourtts when enrployees separate from seryice
with the government. All vacation pay is accrued when incun'ed in the govenrrent-wide financial
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include land, buildings, furniture and equiptnent, are reported
in the applicable governmental ot business-type activities columns in the govenlment-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $5,000 and au estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estirnated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at

estimated fair market value at the date of dollation.

J.

The costs of normal uraintenauce and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and impt'ovements are

capitalized as projects are constructed.

2.

4.

5.
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BOOI(ER INDEPENDENI' SCLIOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAIì. ENDED AUGI.JST 31,2020

Buildings, equipment, and motor vehicles of the District is depreciated using the straight-line method over
following estilnated useful lives:

the

Assets

BLrildings
Building Improvements
Vehicles
Equipment

Years

50

20
5

5

8.

6. Fund Bquity - In tlle firnd financial statements, govenlrrental funds report fund balance as rlonspendable
if the amounts caunot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or are legally or
contl'actually reqLrired to remain intact. Restrictions of fund balance are for arnounts that are restricted to
specific purposes by an external entity (creditors, grantors, governrnental regulations) or the restriction is
irnposed by law thror,rgh constitutional provision or enabling legislation. Commitlneuts of funcl balance
represent amounls that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the
District's Board. Assignments of fund balance are amounts set aside by the District's Superintendeut or
his designee with the intent they be used for specific pulposes.

7. When the District incurs an expense for which it may use either restricted or unrestricted assets, it uses
the restricted assets first unless unrestlicted assets will have to be returned because they were not used.

9.

[stimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity witli generally accepted accounting
principles requires lì'ìanagement to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amoul.ìts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates

In addition to assets, the Balance Sheet and Statement of Net Position rnay report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow ofresources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the Balance Sheet and Statement of Net Position may report a separate section
for deferred inflows ol' resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred lnflows ol'
Resources, represeuts an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow or resource (revenue) until that time. The District has one type of item which
arises only utrder a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category.
Uncollected property taxes which are assumed collectible are reported in this category on the balance
sheet for governmental funds. They are not reported in this category on the government wide statement of
net position.

I l. The Data Control Codes refer to the account code structure prescribed by TEA in tl"te Financisl
Accountabilíty System Resource Guide. Texas Education Agency requires school districts to display
these codes in the financial statements filed with the Agency in order to ensure accuracy in building a

statewide database for policy development and funding plans.

i0.
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BOOKER ìNDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTIìICT
NOTI]S ]"O T]_IE F]NANC]AL STATEMENTS
FOR TI-IE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2020

F. FUND BALANCD

The District's fund balances for its governmental fi-lnds are presented in accordance with GASB Statement No.
54, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions." This statement provides more clearly
defined fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed oll a govenlment's fund
balances rnore transparent.

Fund Balance Classifications: The governmental fund financial statelnents present fund balances based on

classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based priurarily on the extent to which the District is bound to
honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governtnental fuuds cau be spent.

The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

¡ Nonspendable: This classification includes aurounts that cannot be spent because they are either
(a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually lequired to be maintailled intact. The District
has no items cousiderecl nonspenclable fund lralance.

¡ Restricted: This classifìcatiou includes alnounts for which constraints have been placed on the
use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of otlier goventurents, or (b) irnposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. Debt service resources are to be used for future serviciug of the District's bonded debt and

are restricted through debt covenants. Food service resources are being restricted because their use is

restricted pursuant to the rnandates of the National School Lunch and Breakfast Program.

o Committed: This classification includes arnouuts that can be used only for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints irnposed by formal action of the District's Board of Trustees. The board of
Trustees establishes (and rnodifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of a resolution.
This can also be done througlr adoption and amendnrent of the budget. These amouuts cannot be used for
any other purpose unless the Board relnoves or changes the specified use by taking the salne type of
action that was ernployed when the funds were initially committed. This classification also includes
contractual obligations to the extent tlrat existing resources have been specifically committed for use in
satisf ing those contractual requirelnellts.

o Assigned: This classification includes arnouuts that are constrained by the District's intent to be

used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the

Board of Trustees or through the Iloarcl of Trustees delegating this responsibility to other individuals in
the District. Under the District's adopted policy, the superintendent may assign amounts for specific
purposes. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all governmental funds
except for the General Fund.

o Unassigned: This classification includes all atnounts Irot included in other spendable

classifications, includiug the resiclual fund balance for the General Fund.

When an expenditure is incun'ed for purposes l'or which both restricted and unrestricted fulld balance is available,

the District considers restricted funds to have beeu spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which
committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers arlounts to have beert spent

first out of committed funds, then assigued funds, and finally unassigned funds, as treeded, uuless the Board of
Trustees has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

25



G.

BOOKER ìNDEPENDENT SCHOOL Dì STRICT
NOTES ]'O TìJE FINANCìAL STAI'L]MENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ATJGUST 3I,2020

The details of the fund balances are included in the Govenrmental lrunds lJalance Sheet (page 15) and are
described below:

GeneralFund: TheGeneralFundhasanunassignedfundbalanceof$3,ll8,l53atAugust31,2020.

Other Non-major Governmental Funds: The Child Nutrition Program Fund has a nonspendable fund
balance restricted for inventories of $7,542 and restricted funcl balarce of $9,690 at August 31,2020.The
Recycling Center Fund (a special reveuue fund) has other assigrred funcl balance of $6,269 at August 31,
2020.

PDNSIONS

The liduciary net position of tlie Teacher Retirement Systern of Texas (TRS) has lreen detelmined using the flow
of economic resources llleasurement focus and full accrual basis of accountiug. 'Ihis inclLrcles for purposes of
measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resoLrrces related to
peusious, pension expense, and information about assets, liabilities, and additions toldedLlctions fi'oln TRS's
fiduciary net position. Benefit payments (including refunds of ernployee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investlnents are reported at fair value.

H. OTHER POST-EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPBB)

1'he fìduciary net position of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) has been determined using the flow
of economic l'esources lneasurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of
measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB, OPEB expelìse, aud infonnation about assets, liabilities, and additions toldeductions fi'oln TRS's fiduciary
net position. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit tenns. Investments are repofted at fair value.

II. STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCB. AND ACCOUNTABILITY

IìUDGBTARY DATA

The Board of Trustees adopts an "appropriated budget" 1'or the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, and the Child
NLrtrition Program Fund which is included in the Special Revenue Funds. The District is required to present the
adopted and fìnal amended budgeted reveuues and expenditures for each of these ñrnds. The District compares the
final amended budget to actual revenues and expenditures. The General Fund budget report appears in Exhibit
G-1 and the Child Nutrition Program budget report is in Exhibit J-2.

'fhe following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the general-purpose
fiuancial staternents:

l. Prior to August 20 the District prepares a budget for the uext succeeding fiscal year beginuiug
September l. The operating budget includes proposed expenditr"rres and the rreans of financing therr.

2. A rneeting of the Board is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget. At least ten
days' public notice of the rneeting rnust be given.
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Prior to September l, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution by the Board.
Once a br:dget is approved, it can only be amended at the function and fulld level by approval of a

rnajority ol' the tlenrbers of the Board. Arnendments are presented to the Board at its regular
meetings. Each amendureut rnust have Board approval. As required by law, such amendr.nents are
made before the fact, are reflected in the official minutes of the Board, and are not made after fiscal
yeal end. Because the District has a policy of careful budgetary control, several amendments were
luecessary during the year. However, none of these were significant.

4. Each budget is controllecl by the budget coordinator at the revenue ancl expenditure function/object
level. BLrdgeted antounts are as amended by the Board. All budget appropriations lapse at year-eud.
A reconciliation of fund balances for both appropriated budget and nonappropriated budget special
revellLle funds is as follows:

Appropiiated Iìudget l'runds - National

Appropriated Iludget Irunds - National

Nonappropriated Bud get Funds

All Special ììevenue lruuds

August 31,2020

Fund Balance

Iì'eakfast and l-unch Proglam - Iìestricted

lì'eakfast and Lunch Program - L.rventory

9,690

7,s42

6,269

23,501

III. DBTAILBD NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

A. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The funds of the District must be deposited and invested underthe terms of a contract, contents of which are set

out in the Depository Contract Law. The depository bank places approved pledged securities fol safekeeping
and trust with the District's agent bank iu an arnount suffìcient to protect District funds on a day-to-day basis

during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of the depository
bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Iusurance Corporation ("FDIC") insurance.

District Policies and Legal and Contractual Provisions Governing Deposits

Credit Risk: To limit the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations,
the District limits investmerrts in certificates of deposit with depository bank.

Custodial Credit Risk.for Inve.stntents; To lirnit the risk that, in the event of the failure of the courtterparty to a

transaction, a governu'ìent will uot be able to recover the value of investurent or collateral securities that are in
possession of an outside party. The District requires counterparties to register the securities in the name of the

District and hand theln over to the District or its designated agent. Tlie District is not invested in any securities.

Concentratictn qf Cred lLi.sk:'l'o linit the risl< of Ioss altributed to the magnitude of a govenrrent's investmeut il
a single issuer, the District requires the depository bank to pledge securities held by tlle District's agerlt bank in
the District's nalre sufficient to protect District funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of tlle contract. The
pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar arlount oi'Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insurarrce.
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Interest Raîe Risk: To lilnit the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
investrnents, the District requires the certificates of deposit to have maturities of less than one year.

Foreiga:Ç?.t!!9!eyRisk: The District does not invest in foreign entities.

The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisious in the areas of
investurent praclices, rnanagenlent repofts, and establishment of appropriate policies. Among other things, it
requires the District to adopt, implement, and pLrblicize an investrnent policy. That policy must address the
following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversificatiorr, (3) allowable investrnents, (4)
acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) niaxinruni allowable stated maturity of portfolio
investurents, (7) rnaximunl avel'age dollar-weighted nlaturity allowed based on the stated rnaturity date for the
portfolio, (8) investrnent staff quality and capabilities, (9)

As of August 31,2020, the followillg are the Distlict's cash and cash equivalents with respective rnaturities and
credit rating: (dollar arnounts are in thousands).

Maturity in Maturity in
Fair Less than I Maturity in Less than I Credit
Value Percent year l-10 Years year Rating

$ 3,654 99.02% $ $ $ N/A
Type of Deposit

Casll
Money markets and FDIC

Insured Accounts
Investment Pools:
Celtif,rcates of Deposit
Total Investment Pools:

0%

0.98%

N/A

AAAm

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,690 100% $::

B. PROPBRTY TAXBS

Property taxes are levied by October I on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and
business personal property located in the District in conforurity with Subtitle E, Texas Ploperty Tax Code. Taxes
are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before Februaly lof the year following the year in
which imposed. On January 3l of each yeaÍ, a tax lien attaches to propelty to secure the payment of all taxes,
penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available (1) when tlrey becorne
due or past due and receivable within the current period and (2) when they are expected to be collected during a
60-day period after the close ofthe school fiscal year.

C. DELINQUBNT TAXES RECBIVAIìLB

l)elinquent taxes are allocated to maintenance based ou rates adopted for tlle year of the levy. Allowances for
uncollectible tax receivables withirr the General Funcl are based on historical experience in collecting property
taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and written ofI, but the District is
prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statlltory authority 1Ì'om the Texas Legislature.
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D. INTEIIFUND BALANCBS AND TRANSFBRS

Interfund balances at August 31,2020, coltsisted of the following amounts:

Due to General Fund from:
Norrrrajor Governmental Funds $ :--=UAV

lnterfirrrd trausfers for the year ended August 31,2020, consisted of the following individual al.not¡uts:

Transfers to Nonmajor Governmental Funds From:
General Fund $ 

-===i3-Jl:4
These transfers were to supplement the National Breakfast and Lunch Fund.

B. DISAGGRBGATION OF RECBIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Receivables at August 31,2020 were as follows:

Due Irrom Due Flotn Other

Plopelty Othel Accrue cl Othe r Culretlt Other' 'l-otal

Taxes Cnvernnrents lnterest Fuuds lnventories Assets Iìeceivables Receivables

Govcrnrnental ¡\ctivities :

GenelalFund S 60,729 $ 13,090 $ 809 fi14,282 $ $ $ lS $ 88,925

Nonnrajor Governmcnt Funds - 31,123 7,542 100 - 38,765

Total -Governnrental
Acriviries s 60,729 s 44,213 $ 809 s14,282 s7,542 $ 100 $ 15 $ 127,690

Amounts not schecluled

fol' collection cluring the
subsec¡uentyeal S 13,500 S $ - S $ - $ $ 13,500

Payables at August 31,2020, were as follows:

Salaries Due to Due to Accrued
Accounts and Other Othel lìxpend- Unealned 'Iotal

Payable Benelits Funds Govelnlnents itures Iìevenue Pavables

Gove rnme nt¿¡l Activities :

Genelallrund 590,324 $201,513 $ - S 210,289 S2'7,122 fì $529,848
Nonr.na.jol Govelnmcnt llurrds 8 6,319 14,282 2,390 1,019 $ - 24,018

'ìÌ¡ral-Gove'rrr.t.rerttal 
$ 90,332 s 20i,g32 $14,2g2 !È 212,6i9 r] 2g,i4r $ - $ì 553,866

Activities

Aurour.lts not scheduled lbr'

p¿ryrllent duling the
$-$-$-$-$-$-$-sutrsequent ycar' -jl--------- --" -j1- --r:- -::- --Y-
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F.. CAPITAL ASSBT ACTIVITY

Capital asset activity for the District for the year ended August 31 ,2020, was as follows:
Primary Governtnent

Governlnental Activites :

Land

Building and Iurproveurents

Furniture and Equiprrrent

Motor Vehicles

Totals at Historic Cost

Furnitul'e and Equipment

Motor Vehicles

633,110 50,000

$ 9.rs6^496 $ 7r.000

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

$42,053$$$42,0s3
1,613,889 - 1.673,999

801,384 21,000 828,384

683, 1 70

Less Acculnulated Depreciation for:
Building and ìmprovernents $ (5,281,380) $ (159,164) $ $ (5,440,544)

9,1s6,496 $ 7r,000 $ s 9,227,496)),Jv) trv

(642,t22) (29,861) (611 ,989)
(491,686) (55,755) (547 ,441)

Total Accurnulated Depreciation $ (6,415,1BB) S (244,786) S S (6,659,914)
Governrnental Activities Capital
Assets, Net

'I'otal Deprcciation Lixp ens e

G. CHANGBS IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term activity for the year ended August 31,2020, was as follows:
Beginnins

Governmental Activites:
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability

l'otal Governmental Activities Long-
ternr Liabilities

s 2,741,308 $ (173,786) $ S 2,561,522

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions
as fbllows:

Instluction S 123,992

Currioulum & Stall'Developrnent 2,475

School Leadership 928

Student (Pupil) l''r'anspoltation 6,672

Food Selvices 901

Bxtlacuu'iculal Activies t10,090

C,eneral Adnrinistration 4,65'l
Plant Mainterrance and Opelatiorrs 16,316

Comn.runity Services 8,(¡95

!ò 244,786

Ending Due-Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One-Year

$ 1,110,454 $ 10,125 $ 14,476 $ 1,106,103 $

I ,632,645 (86,211) 22,865 1 ,523 ,569

s 2,803,099 $ (76,086) S 97,341 S 2,629,672 $
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H. ACCUMULATtrD UNPAID VACATION AND SICK LBAVE BENEFITS

Upon retirement or death of ceftain employees, the District pays any accrued sick leave and vacation leave in a
lump sum cash payment to such employee or his/her estate. Individuals ernployed after October 1, 1985 are not
eligible to receive the lump sum payments.

I. DEFINBD BENEFIT PBNSION PLAN

PIun Description. The District participates in a cost-sharing rnultiple-ernployer defined benefit pension that has a

special funding situation. The plan is adniinistered by the Teacher Retirenrent Systern of Texas (TRS). It is a
defined benefit pension plan established and administered in accordance with the Texas Constitutiou, Article
XVI, Section 6J and Texas Governrnent Code, Title 8, Subtitle C. The pension tlust fund is a qLralified pension
trust under Section a01(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Texas Legislature establishes benefits and

contl'ibutiort rates within the guidelines of the Texas Constitutiou. The pension's Board of Trustees does not have
the authority to establish or amend benefit terms.

All employees of public, state-supported educational institutions in Texas who are employed for one-half or more
of the standard work load and who are not exempted fi'om membership under Texas Goverutnent Code, Title 8,

Section 822.002 are covered by the systern.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed inforuration about the Teacher Retirement System's fiduciary net
position is available in a separately-issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial
statements and required supplementaly information. 'lhat repoft rnay be obtained on the Internet at

http://www.trs.state.tx.us/about/documents/cafi'.pdf#CAFR; by writing to TRS at 1000 Red River Street, Austin,
TX,18701-2698;or by calling (512) 542-6592.

Net Pension Liabilit),

Total Pension Liability

Less: Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Net Pension Liability

Net Position as a percentage of Total Pension

Liability

Total

$209,961 ,325,288
(151,918,199,075)

s51,983,126,213

1s.24%

Bene.fits Provided. TRS provides service and disability retirerneut, as well as death and survivor benelits, to
eligible ernployees (and their beneficiaries) of public and higher education in Texas. The pension formula is

calculated using 2.3 percent (multiplier) times the average ol'the five highest anuual creditable salaries times
years of creclited service to arrive at the annual standard annuity except for members who are grand fathered, the
three highest annualsalaries are used. The nonnal service retirement is at age 65 with 5 years of credited service
or when the sum of the mernber's age and years of credited service equals 80 or more years. Early retirement is at

age 55 with 5 years of seruice credit or earlier than 55 with 30 years of service credit. There are additional
provisions for early retireurent if the sum of the member's age and years of service credittotalat least 80, butthe
rnernber is lessthan age 60 or 62 depending on date of enploymer.ìt, or if the memberwas grandfatheled in under
a previous rule. There are no autonlatic post-employment benelìt changes, inclucling automatic COLAs. Ad hoc
post-eniployment benefit changes, including acl hoc COLAs can be granted by the Texas Legislature as noted in
the Plan description in (A) above.
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Conlrihutions. Contribution requirements are established oramended pursuanttoArticle 16, section 67 of the
Texas Constitution which requires the Texas legislature to establish a rlernber contribution rate of not less than
6Yo of the lrelltber's anuual courpensation and a state contribution rate of not less than 6o/o and not urore than 10Yo

of the aggregate annual cornpensation paid to members of the systeur during the fiscalyear.
Texas Govemment Code section 821.006 prohibits benefìt improvements, if as a result of the particular action, the
time required to amortize TRS' unfunded actuarial liabilities would be increased to a period that exceeds 3l years,
or, if the amortizalion period already exceeds 3l years, the period would be increased by such action.

Ernployee contribution rates are set in state statute, Texas Government Code 825.402. The 84th Texas
Legislature, General Appro¡rriations Act (GAA) established the employer contribution rates for fiscal years2019
and2020.

Contribution Rates

Member

Non-Errployer Contributing Entity (State)

Employers

1.1%

6.8%

6.8%

1.1%

15%
15%

Current fiscal year District contributions

Current fiscal year Member contributions

2019 lneasurelnent year NECE contributions

$

$

$

'/0,352

238,910

162,915

Contributors to the plan include rnembeLs, employers and the State of Texas as the only non-employer
contributing entity. The State contributes to tlie plan in accordance with state statutes and the General
Appropriations Act (GAA).

As the non-employer contributing entity for public education, the State of Texas contributes to the retirentent
system an an'ìoullt equalto the current ernployer contribution rate times the aggregate annual compensation of all
participating members of the pension trust fund during that fiscal year reduced by the anrounts clescribed below
which are paid by the employers. Employers including public schools are required to pay tlre employer
contribution rate ill the following instances:

. On the portion of the member's salary that exceeds the statutory rlinimum for meurbers entitled
to the statLrtory minimum under Section 21.402 of the Texas Education Code.

o During a new luel'uber's first 90 days of employrnent.
. When any part or all of an employee's salary is paid by federal funcling sources, a privately

sponsored source.

ln addition to the enployer contributions listed above, there are two additional surcharges an employer is sub.ject
to:

. When employing a retiree of the'feacher Retirement System the errployer shall pay both the
lurerrrber contribution and the state contribution as an employment after retireurent surcharge.

o When a school district does not contribute to the Fedel'al Old-Age Survivors and Disability
InsLllance (OASDI) Program for certain employees, they must contlibute 1.5% of the state
contlibutiou rate for certain instructional or administrative enployees, and 100% ol'tlle state
contribution rate for all othel'employees.
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ActuariølAssumlttions. The totalpension liability in tlie August 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assunptions:

Valuation Date August 31,2018 r'olled forward to
August 31,2019

Actuarial Cost Method Individual Entry Age Normal

Asset Valuation Method Market Value

Actuarial Assumptions :

Single Discount Rate 1.25%

Long-term expected I nvesturent Rate
of Return

7.25%

Inflation 2.3%

Salary Increases 3.05% to 9.05Y0 including inflation

Benefit Changes During the Year None

Ad hoc Post-Employment Benefit
Changes

None

The actuarial rnethods and assumptions are based prirnarily on a study of actual experience forthe fouryear
period ending August 31,2018. For a full description of these assumptions, please see the TRS CAFR and

actuarial valuation report dated Novernber 9, 20 1 8.

Discount Rate. The single discount rate used to lxeasure the total pension liability was 7 .25%o. This was a change

in tlre discoullt rate from tlie previous year of 0.343o/o.The projectiori of cash flows used to determine the discount
rate assumed that contributions from active members and those of the contributing ernployers and the non-
enrployer contributing entity are made at the statutorily required rates set during the2019 legislative session. It is
assunred that future ernployer and state contributions will be 8.50% of payroll in fiscal year 2020 gradually
irrcreasing to 9.550/o of payroll over the next several years. This includes all ernployer and State contributions for
active and rehired retirees. Based on those assumptious, the pension plan's fiducial'y net position was projected to
be available to make all futLlre benefÌt payrnents of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to deterrnine the
totalpension liability. The long-term rate of return on pension plan investments is 7,25%. The long-term expected
rate of return on pensiou plan investtnents was determined usittg a building-block method in which best-estimates
ranges ofexpected future real rates ofreturn (expected returus, net ofpension plan investment expense and

inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce tlre long-term expected
rate ofreturn by weighting the expected future real rates ofreturn by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. Best estirnates of geometric real rates of return for each rnajor asset class included in
tlre Systems target asset allocation as of Augr-rst31,2019 are suulurarized on the following page:
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Asset Class Target
Allocation

Real Return
Geometric

Basis

Long-Term
Expected
Portfolio

Real Rate of
Return+

GlobalEquity

U.S.

Non-U.S. Developed

Ernerging Markets

Directional l-ledge Funds

Private Equity

Stable Value

U.S. Treasuries

Absolute Retum

I{edge Funds (Stable Value)

Cash

Real Return

Global Inflation Linked Bonds

RealAssets

Energy and Natural Resources

Commodities

Risk Parity

Risk Parity

Inflation Expectations

Alpha

Total

18%

t3%

9%

4%

13%

t1%

0%

4%

1%

370

t6%

3%

0%

5%

5.10%

6.90%

8.95%

3.53%

10.18%

1.11%

0.00%

3.09%

(0.30)%

0.10%

5.21%

1.48%

0.00%

3.10%

1.04%

0.90%

0.80%

0.14%

1.32%

0.12%

0.00%

0.12%

0.00%

0.02%

0.73%

0.31%

0.00%

0.18%

2.30%

(0.7e)%

100% 1.25%

* The Expected Contribution to Returns incor¡torate,s the volatility drog resuhing

.fi"onr lhe conversion between. Arithmetic and Geomelric mean returns

Discount Rnle Sensitivity Anølysis. 'Ihe following schedule shows the impact of the Net Pension Liability if the
discount rate used was lYo less than at'td lYo greater than the discount rate that was used (1 .25%) in measuring the
201 9 Net Pension Liability.
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1%

Decrease
iu

Discount
Rate

(6.2s%)

Discount
Rate

(1.2s%\

1V"

Iucrease in
Discount

Rate
(8.2s%)

District's proportionate share of the nel
pension liability

$ I ,53 8,792 $ I ,001 ,071 $ 565,41 4

Pension Liabilities, Pensiott Expense, ønd De-ferued Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows o/'Resources
RelatedloPensions.AtJune30,2020,tlieDistrictreportedaliabilityof$1,001,071 foritsproportionateshareof
the TRS's net pension liability. This liability reflects a reduction for State pension support provided to the
District. The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related
State support, and the total portion of tlie net pension liability that was associated with the District were as

follows:

District's proportionate share of tlie collective net pension liability $ 1,001,071

State's proportionate share that is associated with the District 2,419,685

Total _$3,420J56

The net pension liability was rneasured as of Augnst 31, 2019 and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was detennined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's propotlion of the net
pension liability was based on the District's contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all
employers to the plan for the period September I , 201 8 thru August 31,2019.

At Ar"rgust 31,2019 the District's proportiorr of the collective net pension Iiability was 0.0019257623% which
was an increase of 0.000072 4620% from its proportion measured as of August 3l, 201 8.

Chunges Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation. Changes to the actuarial assurnptions or other inputs that affected
measureuleut of the total pension liability since the prior measurement period are as follows:

I . Tlre single discount rate as of August 31,2018 was a blended rate of 6.901% and that has changed to the

long-terrn rate of return of l.25Yo as of August31,2019.

2. V/ith the enactrnent of SB 3 by the 2019 Texas Legislature, an assumption has been made about how this
would inrpact future salaries. It is assumed that eligible active members will each receive a$2,100 increase in
fiscal year 2020. 1'his is in addition to the salary incl'ease expectecl based on the actuarial assumptions.

There were no clranges of benefit terms that affected llleasurement of the total pension liability clr"rring the

lreasurelneut period.

For the year ended June 30, 2020,the District recognized pension expense of $590,338 aud revenue of $380,098
for sLrpport provided by the State in the Governnient-Wide Statenent of Activities.
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At June 30,2020, the District reported its proportionate share of the TRS's deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following soul'ces:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual economic $ 4,205 $ 34,759
experiences

Changes in actuarial assumptions 310,582 128,341

Differeuces between pro.jected and actual investment 10,052
eamings

Changes in ploportion and differences between the
District's contributions and the proportionate share of 126,128 39,265
contributions

Total as of August 31,2019 rneasurerrent date $ 450,967 $ 202}71
Contributious paid to TRS subsequent to the measuremeut 59,635
date

Total as ofJune 30,2020 fiscal year end $ 5t0,602 $ 202,371

The net arnounts of the District's balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal year ended June 30, Amount

2021 $ 73,548

2022 $ 60,451

2023 S 56,922

2024 $ 50,064

2025 s 15,261

Thereafter $ (7,656)

J. DEFINED OTHBR POST-EMPLOYMENT BBNBFIT PLANS

Plan Description. The District participates in the T'exas Public School Retired Ernployees Group lnsurance
Program (TRS-Care). It is a rnultiple-employer, cost-sharing defined benefit Other Post-Employrnent Benefit
(OPEB) plan that has a special funding situation. The plan is administered through a trust by the Teacher
Retirement Systenr o1'Texas (TRS) Board of lì"ustees. It is establishecl and administered in accordance with the
Texas Insurance Code, Chapter 1515.

OPEB Pløn Fiduciary Net Posilion. Detail information about the TRS-Care's fiduciary net position is available
in the se¡rarately-issued 'l-RS Courprehensive Aunual Financial Report that includes financial statements and
required supplernentary inforniation. That report rnay be obtainecl on the Internet at
http://www.trs.state.tx.us/about/docurnents/cafi'.pdf#CAFR; by writing to TRS at 1000 Recl River Street, Austin,
TX,18101-2698; or by calling (512)542-6592.
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Conrponents of the net OPEB liability of the TRS-Care plan as of August3l,2019 are as follows:

Net OPEB Liability:

TotalOPEB liability

Less: plau fiduciary net position

Net OPEB liability

Net position as a percentage of total OPEB liability

Total

s48,583,241,239

(1,292,022,349)

s41,291,224,890

2.66%

Bene.fits Provitled. TRS-Care provides a basjc health insul'ance coverage at no cost to all retirees fi'om public
schools, chalter schools, regional education service centers and other educational districts who are members of the

TRS pension plan. Optional dependent coverage is available for an additional fee.

Eligible non-Meclicare retirees and their dependents may pay prenriums to participate in the high-deductible
health plans. Eligible Medicale retirees and dependents may pay premiurns to participate in the Medicare
Advantage health plans. To qualify for TRS-Care coverage, a retiree must have at least 10 years of seruice credit
in the TRS pension systern.

The General Appropriations Act passed by the 86'r'Legislature included funding to uraintain TRS Care premiutns
at their current level tlrrough 2021. The 86tr' legislature also passed SB 1682 which requires TRS to establish a

contingency reserve in the TRS-Care fund equal to 60 days of expenditures.

The following premium rates for retirees with Medicare Palt A and Part B became effective January 1, 2018 and

are reflected in the following table.

TRS-Care Plan Premium Rates
Effective January l, 201 8 - December 31, 2021

Medicare
Non-

Medicare

Retil'ee or surviving spouse $ 135 $ 200

Retiree and spouse s29 689

Retiree or surviving spouse and children 468 408

Retiree and fanily 1,020 999

Contributiozs. Contribution rates for the TRS-Care plan are established in state statute by the Texas Legislature,
and there is no continuing obligation to plovide benefits beyond each ftscal year. T'he plan is currently funded on

a pay-as-you-go basis and is subject to change based on available funding. Funding for the plan is provided by
retiree premium contributions and contributions fi'om the state, active eurployees, and school clistricts based upon
public school district payroll. The TRS board of trustees does not have the authority to set or aurend contribLltion
rates.
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Texas lnsurance Code, section 1515.202 establishes the state's contribution rate wliich is 1.25Yo of tl'te
enrployee's salary. Section 1575.203 establishes the active employee's rate which is .65%o of pay. Section
1515.204 establishes an employer contribution rate of not less than 0.25 percent or not more than 0.75 percent of
the salary of each active ernployee of the public. The actual employer contribution rate is prescribed by the
Legislature in the Genelal Appropriations Act. The following table shows contributions to the TRS-Care plan by
type ofcontributor.

Contribution Rates

Active employee

Non-employer contributing entity (State)

Employers

Federal/private funding remitted by ernployers

2019 2020

0.6s% 0.6s%

1.250/" 1.25%

0.150/" 0.150/0

1.25% 1.25%

Current fiscal year District contributions

Current fiscal year member contributions

2019 measurement year NECE contributions

$

$

$

25,024

20,168

30,821

In addition to the employer contributions listecl above, there is an additional surcharge all TRS employers are
subject to (regardless of whether or not they participate in the TRS-Care OPEB prograrn). When ernployers hire a
TRS retiree, they are required to pay to TRS-Care, a monthly surcharge of $535 per retiree.

A supplernental appropriation was received in 2019 for $73.6 million, which was re-appropriated from amounts
received by the pension and TRS-Care funds in excess of the state's actual obligation and transferred to TRS-
Care.

Actuarial Assumptiotts. The total OPEB liability in the August 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was detennined using
the following actualial assumptiorrs:

The actuarialvaluation of TRS-Care was pelformed as of August 31,2018. Update procedures were used to roll
forward the total OPEB liability to August 31 ,2019.

The actuarial valuation of the OPEII plan offered through TRS-Care is similar to the actuarial valuation
performed for the pension plan, except that the OPEB valuation is more complex. All of the dernoglaphic
assumptions, including rates of retirerneut, ternination, and disability, and rnost of the econonric assumptions,
including general inflation and salary iucreases, used in the OPEB valuation were identical to those used in the
respective TRS pension valuation. The denographic assumptions were developed in the experieuce study
performed for TRS for the period ending August 31 ,2011 .

The following assumptions usecl for rnembers of TRS are identical to the assumptions ernployed in the August 3 1,

201 9 TIìS annual pension actual'ial valuation:

Iìales of Mortality General Inflation
Rates ol'Retirement Wage Inflation
Rates ol'Terninatioll Expeoted Payroll Growth
Rates of Disability lncidence
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The active rnoltality rates were based on 90 percent of the RP-201 4 Employee Mortality Tables for males and

fernales with full generational rnortality using Scale BB. The post-retirement utottality rates were based on the
2018 TRS of Texas Healtliy Pensioner Mortality Tables, with full generational projection using the ultirnate
irnprovemerlt rates from the most recently published scale (U-MP).

The initial medical trend rates were I 0.25% for Medicare retirees and L50Yo for non-Medicare retirees. There was
an initial prescription drug trend rate of 10.25% for allretirees.'Ihe initialtleud rates decrease to an ultimate trend
rate of 4.50Yo over a period of 13 years.

Additional Actuarial Methods and Assumptious:

Valuatìon l)ate
August 31,2018 rolled forward to
Augtrst 31,2019

Actuarial Cost Method lndividual Entry Age Normal

Inflation 2.30%

Discount Rate 2.63%

Aging Factors Based on plan specific experieuce

Expenses
Third-party adm ini strative expenses
related to the delivery of health care

benefits are included in the age-adjusted
claims costs.

Projected Salary Increases 3.05o/o to 9.05Yo

Election Rates

Normal Retiretnent: 650lo participation
prior to age 65 and 500/o participation
after age 65.25% ofpre-65 retirees are

assumed to discontinue coverage at age

65.

Ad hoc post-err-rployment benefit
changes

None

Tlie impact of the Cadillac Tax that is returning in fiscal year 2023 has been calculated as a portion of the trend
assumption. Assumptions and methods used to determine the impact of the Cadillac Tax include:

t 2018 thresholds of $850/$2,292 were indexed annual by 2.30%.
o Premium data submitted was not adjusted for perurissible exclusions to the Cadillac Tax.
¡ There were no special adjustrnents to the dollar limit other than those permissible for non-

Medicare retirees over 55.

Results indicate that the value of the excise tax would be reasonably represented by a 25 basis point addition to
tlre long-terrn trend rate assurnption.

Discouttf Rale. A single discount rate of 2.630/o was usecl to rleasure the total OPEB liability. There was a change

of (1 .06%) in the discount rate since the previous year. Because the platr is essentially a "pay-as-you-go" plan, the
single discount rate is equalto the prevailing municipal bond rate. The pro-iection of cash flows used to determine
the discount rate assulned that contributions from active melnbers and those of the contribLrting enrployers aud tlie
non-employer contributing entity are rnacle at tlle statutorily requirecl rates.
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Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fidr,rciary net position was pro.iected to not be able to make all
future benefit paynrents of current plan members. Therefore, the municipal bond rate was applied to all periods of
pro.jected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. The source of the municipal bond rate was
fìxed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to rnaturity that include only federally tax-exempt rnunicipal bonds
as reported in Fidelity Index's "Z}-year Municipal GO AA Index" as of August 3l , 2019 .

Sensifiriþ oJ'the Net OPEB Liabiliry:

Discount Rate Sensitivíty Analy"^ls - The following schedule shows the inrpact of the net OPEB liability if the
discount rate usecl was 1%o less than at^td 1%o greater than the discount rate fhat was used in lneasuring the net
OPEB liability.

1%

Decrease in
Discount

Rate
(1.63%)

Current
Single

I)iscount
Rate

(2.63%)

lolo Increase
in Discor"ult

Rate
(3.63%)

District's proportionate share of net OPEB
liability $ 1,866,470 s 1,545,962 s 1,295,225

Healthcare Cost Trend Rales Sensitivity Analysis - The following presents tlie net OPEB liability of the plan
using the assumed healtlicare cost trend rate, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated
using a trend rate that is one-percentage point lower or one-percentage point higher than the assumed healthcare
cost trend rate:

1%
Decrease

Current
Healthcare
Cost Trend

Rate

lolo Increase

District's proportionate share of net OPEB
liability s 1,261,140 $ 7,545,962 $ 1,921 ,488

OPEB Liahilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows oJ'Resources
Related to OPEBs. At June 30,2020, the District reported a liability of $1,545,962 for its proportionate share of
the TRS's net OPEB liability. This liability reflects a reduction for State OPEB support provided to the Distlict.
The anount recognizecl by tlie District as its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, the related State
st-tpport, and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District's proporlionate share of the collective net OPEB liability S 1,545,962

State's proportionate share that is associated with the District 2,054,235

Total $ 3,600,197

l'he net OPEB liability was measured as of August 31,2019 and the total OPIllS liability r-rsecl to calculate the net
OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 'Ihe District's proportion of the net OPEB
liability was based on the District's contributions to the OPEB plan relafive to the contributions of all enrployers
to tlre plan for the period Seplenrber 1,2018 thru AugLrst 31,2019.
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At Augnst 31,2019 the District's propoftion of the collective net OPEB liability was 0.0032690210% which was
a decrease of 0.0000441501% from its proportion rneasured as of August 31, 2018.

Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Vnlualion. l'he following were changes to the actuarial assumptions or other
inputs that affected lÌìeasuretnent of the total OPEB liability since the prior measuren-ìeltt period:

1. The discount rate changed from 3.69% as ol'August31,2018fo2.630/o as of August31,2019. This change
increased the total OPEB liability (TOL).

2. Tlre participation rate fol pre-65 retirees was lowered fron J}o/o to 65Yo. The participation rate for post-65

retirees was lowered frorn 7 50/o Io 50o/o. 25o/o of pre-65 retilees are assulned to discontinue their coverage at

age 65. There was not lapse assumption in the prior valuation.'lhese changes decreased the TOL.

3. The trend rates were reset to better reflect the plan's anticipated experience. This change iucreased the TOL.

4. Dernograpliic and economic assumptiorrs were updated based on the experience study performed for TRS for
the period ending August 31,2017. This change increased the total OPEB liability.

5. Tlie percentage of retirees who are assumed to have fivo-person coverage was lowered from 20Yoto 15Yo.ln
addition, the participatiou assumption for the surviving spouses of ernployees tliat die while actively
ernployed was lowered from 20%o fo 10%0. These changes decreased the TOL.

There were no changes in benefit terms since the prior nleasuretnellt date.

For tlie year ended June 30, 2020,the District recognized OPEB expense of $107,646 and revenue of $54,141 for
support provided by the State.

At June 30,2020,the District reported its proportionate share of the TRS's deferred outflows of resources and

deferred inflows of resorlrces related to other post-ernployment benefits from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual actuarial experience $ 75,842 $ 252,980

Changes in actuarial assumptions 85,866 415,825

Differences between projected and actual investr-nent earnings 167

Changes in proportion and difference between the District's
contributions and the proportionate share of contributious I I l 

'861

Total as of August 31,2019 rneasurement date s 213,136 S 668,805

Contributions paid to TRS subsequent to the measurement date 21,051

Total as of June 30 , 2020 fi scal year eucl
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The net aurounts of the District's balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expeuse as follows:

Year ended June 30, Amount

2021 $ (69,835)

2022 $ (69,835)

2023 $ (69,889)

2024 $ (69,921)

2025 $ (69,912)

Thereafter s (45,677)

K. HEALTH CARE COVBRAGE - RDTIREBS AND ACTIVE EMPLOYEBS

Retiree Health Care Coveraqe

PIan Descrìption. The District participates in the Texas Public School Retired Employees Group Insurance
Program (TRS-Care), a cost-shariug rnultiple-ernployer defined benefit post-eniployment health care plan
administered by the Teacher Retirement Systern of Texas. TRS-Care provides health care coverage for ceftain
persons (and their dependents) who retire under the Teacher Retirenrent System of Texas. The statutory authority
for the program is Texas Insurance Code, Chapter 1515. Texas Insurance Code Section 1515.052 grants the TRS
Board of Trustees the authority to establish and amend basic and optional group insurance coverage for
participants. The TRS issues a publicly available financial repoft that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for TRS-Care. That report rnay be obtained by writing to the TRS Communications
Depaftmetrt, 1000 Red River Street, Austin, Texas 78701, by phoning the TRS Comnunications Department at l-
800-223-8118, or by downloading the report from the TRS Internet Website, www.trs.state.tx.us under the TRS
Publications heading.

Funding Polìcy. Contribution requiremerrts are not actuarially deterrnined but are legally established each
bienniunr by the Texas Legislature. Texas hrsurance Code, Sections 1575.202,203, and 204 establish state, active
employee, and public school contributions, respectively. The Contribution Rate for tlie State was 1 .25% for 201 8
thru2020. The contribution rate for the district was 0.75Yo for 201B thru 2020. The contribution rate for active
enrployees was 0.65% of the district payroll for 2018 thru 2020. Per Texas Insurance Code, Chapter 1575, the
public school contributjon nray not be less thar 0.25%o or greater than 0.7 5o/o of the salary of each active en-rployee
of the public school. For staff members funcled by federal progralxs, the federal progralrs are required to
contribution 1 .25% for 201 8 thru 2020.

ContrÍltutions. Contributions made by the State on behalf of the District are recorcled in the governmental funds
financial slalements as both l'eveuue and expenditures. State contributions to TRS rrade on behalf to the District's
employees as well as the District's required contributions and federal grant program contributions for the years
ended.lune 30,2020,2019 at"td2018 are in the table oll the following page:

/14



BOOI(ER INDEPENDENI' SCFIOOL DISTRICl"
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F-OIì TIIE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2020

Contribution Rates and Contribution Amounts

Mernber State Sohool District

Year Rate Amount Rate Amounl Amount

2020 0.6s% $

2019 0.65% $

2018 0.6s% $

20,168 1.25% $

18,532 1.25% $

18,014 1.25% $

38,184 0.15% S 23,271

35,638 0.15% $ 21,383

34,642 0.7 5% $ 20,785

Medicare Part D. The Medicare Prescription Drug,lmprovement, and Modernization Act of 2003, which was

effective January 1,2006 established prescription drug coverage for Medicare benef,rciaries known as Medicare
Part D. One of the provisiorrs of Medicare Paft D allows for the TRS-Care to receive retiree drug subsidy
payments lì'om the federal govelnment to offset ceftain prescription drug expenditures for eligible TRS-Care
participants. On-behalf payments recognized as equal revenues and expenditures by the District for the years

ended June 30,2020,2019 and2018 were $13,409,510,112 and $8,737, respectìvely.

The B6tr'Legislative Session of the Texas Legislature appropriated supplemental contributions to the TRS-Care
program. Amounts appropriated for fiscal year 2020 totaled 5192.3 million with the District's share of the on

belralf contribution recognized during the year as both reveuues and expenditures totalingS6,286.

Active Bmployee Health Care Coverage

Plan Description. The District participates in TRS Active Care sporlsored by the Teacher Retirement Systern of
Texas and administered tlirough Aetna and Caremark (phannacy). TRS-Active Care provides health care

coverage to employees (and their dependents) of participating public education entities. Optional life and long-
term care insurance are also provided to active members and retirees. Authority for the plan can be found in the
Texas hrsurance Code, Title 8, Subtitle H, Chapter 1579 and in the Texas Administrative Code, Title 34, Paft 3,

Chapter 41. The plan began operations on September I,2002. This is a prernium-based plan. Paytnents are made

on a monthly basis for all covered employees.

L. WORKBRS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE

The District participated in the Texas Educational Insurance Association Workers' Cotnpensation Self lnsurance
Joint Fund (the "Program") adnrinistered by Clairns Admiriistrative Services. The Program is a cooperative of
participating school districts throughout the State of Texas whereby the risks of workers' compensation claims are

shared by each district. The Proglarn administers the workers'colnpensation of the District and accounts for risk
financing activities but does not constitute transfer of risk for the District.

Claims Administrative Services, Inc. provides claims administration. The fixed cost charge is based on total
payroll paid by the District. Increases or decreases in the fixed costs will adjust subsequent year changes. The
accrued liability for the year ended August 31 , 2020, for the District was $ 24,3 57 for all claims incurred. Claims
exceeding this arnount would be paid by the cooperative up to a maximum of $500,000. Claims above $500,000
are protected against aggregate loss r-rp to tlle state statutory maximurn anlor"lut by coverage the cooperative has

purchased through a comurercial insurer licensed or eligible to be business in Texas in accordance with the Texas
Insurauce Code.

The District accoul.ìts for the risk activities related to Workers' Conpensation Insurance in the General Fund and

recorcls the related costs as opelation expenditures. Claims payable reported in the General lrr"rnd include the

ulldiscounted liability cstiurated l'or incurred but not reported worker's compensation claims.
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Changes in claims liability amounts for the Workers' Compensation Self-Insurance Fund for the year ended
August 31,2020 were as follows:

Unpaid Clainx

9/r/2019

Changes

in Estimates

Clairn

Payrnents

Unpaid Clairns

8/3t/2020

26,9s0 $ 1,384 $ 24,357

As result the unpaid claims of 524,357 is included in Accrued Expenditures, on Exhibit C-1.

M. CAFETERIA PLAN

During the year ended August 3I,2020, the District offered a cafeteria plan meeting the requirements of Section
125 of the Internal Revenue Code to all full-time employees. Under the cafeteria plan participants designate a
portion of their salary to be conhibuted to the cafeteria plan to pay for selected un-reimbursed expenses. Eligible
un-reimbursed expenses include medical expenses; child and dependent care costs, term life insurance costs,
health insurance costs, cancer insurance cost and dental expenses. By contributing to the cafeteria plan, employees
can receive certain income tax benefits. Booker Independent School District is the administrator of the cafeteria
plan.

N. HEALTHCARE COVERAGE

The District provided health care benefits to staff members and their dependents through the statewide TRS
Active Care Benefits Program, a public entity risk pool. The District contributed $225 per month per employee to
the plan, and employees, at their option, authorized payroll withholdings to provide coverage for dependents.
Health claim payments were processed by the administrators of the TRS Active Care Benefits Program. The
Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) manages TRS Active Care. The District's participation in the
program is renewable annually. The District has no risks or liabilities associated with the TRS Active Care
Benefits Program. Participants in the plan can choose from several different benefit options and must meet
certain el igibility requirements.

O. DEF'ERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows of resources at year-end consisted of the following:

Creneral

Fund

Net Unrealized Property Ta;<es $ 47,229

Total

S 47,229
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P. SCHOOL HBALTH AND RELATED SERVCBS (SHARS)

The District received $40,816 of School Health and Related Services (SI-IARS). This code is to be used to
account for funds received from the School Health and Related Services (SHARS) Program. Funds received
represent reimbursements to the school district for scliool-based health selices, whicli at'e provided to special
education students enrolled in the Medicaid Program. These receipts are not considered "federal financial
assistance" for inclusion in the Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance. In addition, the expenditures associated
with SI{ARS reimbursements will be subtracted fi'om special education expenditures for maintenance of effort
purposes.

A. REVENUE FROM LOCAL AND INTBRMBDIATtr SOURCBS

During the current year, revenues from local and intennediate sources consisted of the following:
Special

Cteneral Revenue

Fund Fund Total

Pnrperty'faxes and Other
TaxRelatedlncome S 2,367,413 $ - 2,367,413

Investment Income 64,393 285 64,678

Foundations, Gifts and Bequests 16,041 25,000 41,041

Food Sales - 18,287 18,287

Co-curricular Student Activities 70,597 - 10,597

Other 10,979 3,103 14,082

s 2,469,423 S 46,67s $ 2,s16,098

A. SHARED SERVICB ARRANGBMENTS

The District is a member of the following Shared Services Arangements (SSA):

The Per'ryton Independent School District is the fiscal agent for a Shared Services Arangement for special
education sen¿ices to member districts. In addition to the fiscal agent, other member districts includes Booker
Independent School District, Darrouzett Independent School District, Follett Independent School District, and
Spearman Independent School District. All services are provided by the f,rscal agent. The member districts
provide the funds to the fiscal agent, which accounts for the fiscal agent activities of the SSA in Special Revenue
Funds No. 313, Shared Services Aruangement - IDEA B Formula; No. 314, Shared Services Arrangements -
IDEA B Preschool; and No. 199, Shared Services Arrangements - Special Education. These Shared Seruice
Arrangements are accounted for in accordance with Model 3 in the SSA section of the Resource Guide.

Fund 313 - Payments to the District:
IDEA - Part B Formula, Fund224 S 4!-41-L

Fund 314 - Payments to the District:
IDEA - Part B Formula, Fund 225 S ?Æ9

Fund 199 - Payments to the SSA by the District:
SSA - Special Education, Function 93 $ Z3-520
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R. DUE FROM OTHBR GOVERNMENTS

The District participates in a vadety of federal and state progralns flom which it receives grants to paftially or
fully finance certain activities. In addition, the District receives entitlements fi'om the State through the School
Foundation and Per Capita Programs. Aurounts due from federal and state governments as of August31,2020,
are sunllnarized below:

Fund

General Fund
Nonrnaj or Governnrental Funds

Total Due fi'om Other Governntents

Local
Governlnents

$ 13,090 $

State

Entitlements

2,990

Federal
Glants

$-$
28,133

Total

I 3,090
31,123

$ ____ 3p90_ g _29n_ $_28,1n_ S _44213_

S. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB issued Staternent No. 84, FidLrciary Activities. This standard becomes effective for the District in
frscal year 2021 .

The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. This standard becomes effective for the District in fiscal year 2021.

The District will evaluate the irnpact of the standards on its financial statements and will take the necessary steps
to implement them.

T. DATE OF'MANAGBMENT EVALUATION

Managernent has evaluated subsequeut events through February 8,2021, the date which the financial statements
were available to be issued.

46



EXI.I]BIT GI
BOOKER ISD

SCIIEDTJLEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CFIANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2020

Data

Control

Codes
Original

Iludgeled Amounts

Actr¡al Amounts Valiance With
(GAAP IIASIS) Final lludget

l'ositivc or'

(Negarive)Irinal

REVENUES:
5700 Total L¡cal and Intermediate Sources

5800 State Program Revenues
5900 Federal Program Revenues

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

I I 00 Excess (Deficiency) ofRevenues Over (Under)

Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
891I Transfers Out (Use)

SPEC]ALITEMS:
Bgtz Special ltem- (Use)

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances

0100 Fund Balance - September 1 (Beginning)

3000 Fund Balance - August 3l (Ending)

4,953, r 83 5,200,583 5,124,026

2,403,005 tl
2,530,1'78

20.000

2,469,505 I,

2,689.078
42.000

2,469,423 $

2,613,787
40,816

(tl2)
(7s,29t)
(r,r84)

s 020 (76,557)

EXPENDITURES:
Cun'ent:

001 I Instruction
0012 Instructional Resoulces and Media Ser"vices

0013 Curriculum and lnstructional Staff Developrnent
002 I Instructional læadership
0023 School læadership
003 I Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services

oo:: Health Services

0034 Student (Pupil) Transportation
0036 Extracun'icular Activities
004 I Creneral Administration
00s I Facilities Maintenance and Operations
0052 Security and Monitoring Services

0061 Community Services

Intergovernmental:

0093 Payments to Fiscal Agent/Member Districts of SSA

0099 Other Intergovernmental Charges

) 65) 7)\
32,856

10,'766

r 0,025

269,988
75,3ss

1,t51

47,882
378,53 8

391,t51

625,389
I 1,350

8,750

13,520
38,000

2,822,480
33,134

60,866

16,429

286,6t4
82,249

3,45 r

84,340
385,47 4

471,6'72

876,867

550

3,250

73,520
34,000

2,759,045
30,278
55 57Q

15,458
)1) q\1

81,029
3,1t5

43,131

326,649
465,320

863,595

500

2,120

73,520
33,772

63,435
2,856

5,287

971
13,6s7

1,220

336
41,209
58,825

6,352

13,272

50

l,t30

228

603 0 4,687,046 5,234,896 5,026,068 208,828

266,137

(56, r 37)

(2 1 0,000)

(34,3 13)

(2t,137)

(42,358)

97,9s8

(13,714)

(2s,428)

t32,271

7,423

1 6,930

t56,624

3,119,937

3,t 19,937 $ 3,022,129 s 3,178,753 $ t56,624

(97,808)

3,t19,937

5{t,816

3,119,937
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L.XlJlÌìl'l G-2
BOOKLÌR INDEPT'ND}]N]' SCI.IOOL DI S1-IìICI'

SC]I'IEDUI-[ OIì I] IT] DISI'RICI'S PROPORTIONAI'E STIAIìt] OIì II{[' NET PENSION I-IAI]ILIIY
TEACI.IEIì Iì81]I{EMENT SYSI'EM OIì ]'EXAS

ÌIOR ]'IjË YEAIì ENDED AIJGUSI' 3I, 2O2O

Measurement Ycar lindecl Augusl 3 l,
20t9

o.oo21278 t24yo

5i t,106,t03

2,1',7'7,844

20 t8

o.002 t2645830/o

$ r, l 70,454

2,452,460

2016 20142017 2015

D¡strict's Proportion oflhe Net Ì)ensron l,iâbjfity (Assel)

f)islrict's I)ro¡rortionatc Share oiNet Pcnsion l-jability (Asset)

Slales PÌollortionatc Share ofthe Net Pension I-iabilìty (Assct)

associatecl wilh fhe Distrrct

'l otal

District's Covcrcd PayLolì

l)islricl's Proportìonate Share of the Nel Pension l,iability (Asset)

as â l)oÌcenlage of its Coverccl Payroll

Plan Ficluciary Net Position as a percertage ofthc Total Pcnsion Liability

0.0023603653yo 0.0022548?22y" 0.0026006000% 0.0014391000%

$ 754,718 $ 852,083 S 919,2'7'1 $ 384,403

1,48s.96r 1,902,522 2,054.Q72 1,662,434

s 3,283,947 $ 3,622,914

s 2,'7'7'7,293 !ì 2,16t,719

39 430/" 42180/õ

J___:_,u!_.61e r___ ïl1f!L 3-__ ]f13;!e _q_-_:'01$]r

5; 2,7(10,303 S 2,818,746 S 3,045,1 l7 S 2,828,139

2'7.34'% 30 230/0 30.t9y. 13.590/0

'75.24Yo 82.|'to/o '18 000/0 78.41o/o 83.25y.

shoilld no1 includc infornlation fhat is nol Dreasured in accordance s,itlì tlìe requiteulents oftllis Statenlerìt."
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lixlilllll'G-3
IIOOKtIR ì NDEPIINDlìN1' SCI-lOOl- DI S'llllC'I

SC1.]EDUI,B OI1 1].I]J DIS'IIìIC-']''S CONI]ì]ì3UIIONS ]:OIì PENSIONS

TEACIIEI{ I{E',llIìlìM[iNl- SYS'fl]M Olj lÌ.XAS
FOIì ll'ìL YEAIì ìrNDtÐ AIJGUST 31. 2020

Fiscal Year Ended ,Augusl 3 l,
2020 20t9 2018 201'7 2016 201s

Corrtractually lìcquirrd Contribution $ 8l,l 14 S 74,4'76 S 71,782 S 78,005 S '11,644 $ 77,004

Contribution in Relation to the CorìÎrâctually Required CoDtribulion ('14,4'76) (71,'782) (?8,005) (11,644) (11,004)

Contribution Delìciency (lìxcess) $ S - _l..-----.--.----...---....----.- _!_______________

District's Covered Payroll $ 3,053,614 .$ 2,7'17,293 ï 2,761,'1'79 S 2,760,303 S 2,818,746 S 3,045,117

Conlribì.ìtions as a percerìtage ofCovered Payroll 2.66yo 2.68y. 2.600/. 2.83o/o 2.54o/o 2.53%

should ¡rot inclùde informalion that js Dot rncasr¡ed in accorclancc with the requirerrents olthis StateDtent."
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EXI IIBI'I'G-4
BOOKLIIì INDEPIINDHNT SCI ìOOl. DlSllììC]'

SCI]ËDUl.ll OF 1'l lll DISTIìICI'S PlìOPOI{1'lON,,\lìi Sl-lAIìtì Oìr 1l'ìFl Nì11' OPìill LIAIIìLI]-Y
]]]ACI II]R RETIIIEMENT SYSI'EM OìI ]'EXAS

lìOR ll'lì:l YEAIì IINDED AUGUSI'31,2020

Distlrct's Propoltion of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

District's Propoltìonate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

Stalc's I'r'opoltionate Shale of the Net OPIìll l..iability (Asset) associatecl with the Distlict

l'otal

Dislrict's Covered Payroll

Dist|ict's Pro¡rortionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

as a percenlagc ol'its Coveled Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage ofthe Total OPEB Liability

McasrrrcrncnI Ycar lrnrìcd Âugrrst 3l
2019 201 8 2017

0.00322t6786yo 0.0032698078% 0.0037462893%

$ r,s23,-s69 ï, t,632,64s $, 1,629,121

2,024,48s 2,369,969 2,161,4?1

_q____u$!¡1_ _q____49¿q1_ _$____u29ë¿

$ 2,'.7'77,293 ï, 2,761,7'/9 fì 2,760,303

54.86% 59.12% s9.02%

2 660/" t.57% 0.91%

Statement."
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EXFIIBIT G-.5

BOOKER ìNDEPì]NDENT SCHOOI. D]STRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTR]CT'S OPEB CONTRIBUT]ONS

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS
FO]ì ]'HE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2020

Fiscal Year Ilnded August 31,

2020 2019 201 8

Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution

Contri bution Defi ciency (Excess)

Distlict's Coveled Payroll

Contributions as a percentage ofCovered Payroll

(22,86s)

$$$-

26,811

(26,811)

22,865

2,777,293

0.82Yo

)) \7c)

(22,57e)

3,053,614

0.88%

2,761,779

0.82%

Note: Only three yeals of data is plesented in accordance with GASB #75,paragraph 245. "The infolmation fol all fiscal years for the 10-

year schedules that are lequiled to be presented as required supplernentary information may not be available initially. In these cases, during

the transition period, that inforrnation should be plesented for as many years as are available. The schedules should not include infolr¡ation
that is not lneasuted in accoldance with the requil'ements of this Statement."
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BOOKER INDEPENDì]N'I SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES I'O I"I-IE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TI-IE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 3I,2O2O

Budget

The official budget was prepared for adoption for all Governrnental Fund Types. The budget was

prepared in accordance with accounting practices generally accepted in the United States of America. The
following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data:

A. Prior to August 2l of the preceding fiscal year, the District prepares a budget for the next
succeeding fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and tlie tneans of
financing them.

B. A meeting of the Board is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget after ten

days' public notice of the meeting has been given.

C. Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a
resolution by the Board.

Once a budget is approved, it can be amencled at function and fund level only by approval of a rnajority of
the members of the Board. Amendments are presented to the Board at its regular meetings.

Each amendment must have Board approval. Such amendlnents are made before the fact, are reflected in
the official minutes of the Board and are not made after fiscal year end as required by law.

Each amendment is controlled by the budget coordinator at the revenue and expenditure function/object
level.

Budgeted amounts are as alnended by the Board. All budget appropriations lapse at year end.

Encumbrances for goods or purchased services are doculnented by purchase orders or coutracts. Under
Texas law, appropriations lapse at August 31, and encumbrances outstandingatthattime are to be either
cancelled or appropriately provided for in the subsequent year's budget. There were no end-of-year
outstanding encumbrances that were provided for in the subsequent year's budget.

Defìned Benelit Pension Plan

Changes of benefit terms.

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected l.neasureureut of tlie total pension liability during the

rneasurernent period.

Chan ges of assumpl ions.

See Footnote I page 33 for changes in assurnptions that affected rneasureu-ìent of the total pension liability
during the measuremenf period.

Other Post-Employn, ent Benefit Plan

C h an ge s of a s su ntptions.

See Footnote J page 3B for changes in assumptions tllat affected nleasurement of the total OPEB liability
during the measurement period.

52



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

53



COMBINING STATEMENTS
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I]OOKEI{ ISD
COM BìNING BA LANCE SI_IEgf

NONM A J OR COVERNM ENTA L FUNDS
AUGUST 3I,2O2O

Data

Control

Codcs

211 212

LìSI,ìA l, A ESEA 'l-itle I

Imploving Palt C

lìasic Plog'arn M ig'ant

224 225

IDBA - Part Il IDIIA - Part B

Formula Preschool

llt0
1240

l 300

t490

I 000

2t 10

2160

217 0

2180

2200

2000

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Due fi'orn Other Covernments

Inventories
Othel Cun'ent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILIT]ES
Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages Payable

Due to Othel Funds

Due to Othel Cnvernments

Accrued Expenditures

Total Liabilities

$ s 11,292 $ 2,390

$s-
1t,292

2,390

-$
11,292

2,390 $

2,390

FUNDBALANCES

Nonspendable Fund Balance:

3410 lnventories

Restricted Fun d Balance :

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction

Assigned Fund Balance:

3590 Other Assigned Fund Balance

3000 TotalFundBalances

4000 Total Liabilities and Fund Balances t1,292 $ 2,390 $
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EXIjlllll" H-1 (Cont'd)

240

National

I}'eakfast ancl

Llrnch Program

242

Sunrmer'

lìeeding

Prog arn

244

Caleer and
'l'echnical -

Basic Grant

255 2',70 289

ESEA II,A ESEA VI, Pt Il Other Fedelal

T'rainingancl lìulal & Low Special

Recruiting lncoure llevenue Funds

410 429

State Othel State

Instructional Special

M atel'ials lìevcnue Irunds

i9s $

16,841

1,542

2,990

24,s78 $ $ !__________

$

2,990

a8

6,319

1,0r 9

2,990

1,346 ? qqO

7,542

9,690

24,s18 $
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EXHIBIT H-1
BOOKER ISD

COMBìNING BALANCE SHEET

NONM A J OR COVERNM ENTA L FUNDS
AUGUST 3I,2O2O

Data

Control

Codes

499 Total

Othcr Local Norrtra.ior

Special Govemmental

Iìcvenue Funds Funds

t 1l0

1240

r300

1 490

l 000

21 t0

2160

2170

2180

2200

2000

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Due fi'onr Othel Govelnments

Inventolies
Other Current Assets

Total Assets

LIAB]LITIES
Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages Payable

Due to Other Funds

Due to Other Covernlnents

Accrued Expenditures

Total Liabilities

6,169 $

roo

8,754

31,123

1,s42

100

6,269 $ 47,519

8

6,319

14,282

2,390

1,019

24,018

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable Fund Balance:

3410 Inventories

Restricted Fund Balance:

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction

Assigned Fund Balance:

3590 Other Assigned Fund Balance

3000 Total Fund Balances

4000 Total Liabilities and Fund llalances

7,542

9,690

6,2696,269

6,269 23,s01

6,269 s 47,519
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Data

Control

Codes

BOOKERISD
COM BIN]NG STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITU]ìES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BAI-ANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNM ENTAL FUNDS
FOR T]-IE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2O2O

211 212

ESEA I, A ESEA ]'iIIE I

Improving Part C

Basic Prog'am M ig'ant

224 22s

IDIIA - Palt Il IDIIA - Part B

Iìonnula Pleschool

REVENUES:

5700 Total Local and Intennediate Sources
5800 State Ploglam Revenues
5900 Federal Progranr Revenues

5020 Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
0011 Instruction
0013 Culriculurn and Instl'uctional Staff Developlnent
0021 lnstluctional tæadership
0035 Food Selvices
0052 Security and Monitoring Services
0061 Cormnunity Selvices

Total Expenditures

I 100 Excess (Deficiency) ofRevenues Over (Under)
E4enditures

OTHER FìNANC]NG SOURCES (USES):

7915 Transfel's In

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance

0100 Fund Baìance - September 1 (Beginning)

3000 Fund Balance - August 3l (Ending)

40,559 3 0,483 40,471 2,420

40.55.) 3 0.483 40.47 | 2,420

38,573

1,429

t:,

3,433

27,050

40,47 | 2,420

40.559 30,483 40,471 2,420
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I:lXI IIIlll' ll-2 (Cout'cl)

240

National

Ilreakfast and

Lunch Plog'anr

242

Sumnter'

Feeding

Plog'am

244

Caleer and

Tcchnical -

Basic Grant

2s5 270 289

ESIrA ll,A IISIIA Vl, Pt B Other Fedelal

Tlaining ancl Iìulal & Low Special

Recruiting Incorre Revenue Funds

410 429

State Other State

hrstructioual Special

Materials ReveirueF'unds

18,287 $

78,{Ì40

11s,037

t36 S

|,743
-$

4,527

-lì

9,200

-$

32,849

-$

12,671

-$
62,638 10,992

212,164 t 1,fl79 4,527 9,200 32,849 t2,67 | 62,638 t0,992

216,872 t1,879

4,52'7 9,200 32,849 7,454

5,217

67,317 7,500

t:,

2.990

216.872 t1,879 4,527 9,200 32^849 12,67t 67,317 10,992

(4,708)

13,714

(4,679)

9,006

8,226

(4,67e)

4,679

17,232 S
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EXI-IIBì'f I-I-2

l)al a

Control

Cocles

BOOKERISD
COMT]IN]NG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNM ENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2O2O

499 'l'otal

Otllcll,ocal Nonrnajor

Special Governrnental

Iìevenue lrunds Funds

5700

5800

5900

5020

REVENUES:

Total L¡cal and Intermediate Sout'ces
State Prograrn Revenues
Federal Program Reveu ues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Cut'rent:
00ll Instluction
0013 Cun'iculum and Instluctional StaffDevelopnlent
0021 Instructional læadership
0035 Food Services
0052 Security and Monitoring Services
0061 Cornmunity Selvices

6030 Total Eryenditures

1 100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Ependitures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

7915 Tlansfers In

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance

0100 Fund Balance - September I (Beginning)

3000 Fund Balance - August 31 (Ending)

28,2s2 $ 46,67 5

168,7 40

283,690

28.252 499. r 05

zs.e6l

213,744

1,93 r

32,824
228,7s1

? c)qo

2{l,tì61

28,86r 509,1 01

(60e) (e,ee6)

13,714

(60e)

6,878

3,718

19,783

6,269 S 23,501

6l



REQUIRED TEA SCHEDULE,S

62



BOOKERISD

SCHEDULE OF DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2020

M aintcnance Debt Service

(3)

Assessed/Ap p raised

Value fol School

Ta,r Purposes

(2)(t)

Last l0 Years Ended

Augrst 31

Tax Ratcs

2011 and plioryeals

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020 (School year under audit)

1000 TOTALS

Various

I . I 20000

LI20000

1 . r 20000

1 . I 30000

l. I 70000

I .1 70000

I . I 70000

I . I 70000

1.068400

Various

0.000000

0.060000

0.060000

0.0s0000

0.036000

0.000000

0.000000

0.000000

0.000000

784,897,578

204,822,696

299,188,651

3s3,691,328

372,888,390

348,513,516

I 98,1 09,903

211,742,964

204,428,511

221,895,461
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EXI-IIBIT J-I

( l0)
Beginning

lìalance

9lv20t9

(20)

Cnllent

Year's

1'otal l-evy

(31)

M aintenance

Collections

(32)

Debt Selvice

Collections

(40)

Entile

YeaL's

Acl justnrents

(s0)

Ending

Ilalance

8131/2020

7,9M S

1,465

1,466

2,266

2,9s1

4,135

4,598

6,145

t8,667

150 $

1l

6

71

76s

934

934

9,194

2,34s,210

-s (2) $

I

'7'7q)

1,455

1,460

2,267

2,879

3,370

3,665

5,210

9,473

23,159

1

(l)

I

(l)

2,368,374 (6)

49,637 $ 2,368,314 S 2,357,275 $ (7) $ 60,129
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EXIIIBIT J-2
BOOKERISD

SCHEDULEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CI_IANGES IN IIUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CHILD NUTRIT]ON PROGRAM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2O2O

Data

Control

Codes
Original

Iludgeted Arnounts

Actual Amounts Variancc With
(GAAP IIASIS) Irinal Iìudget

l)osit ivc or
(Negative)

REVENUES:
5700 Total l,ocal and ìntermediate Sources

5800 State Program Revenues
5900 Federal Progranr Reveuues

5 020 Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Curent:

0035 Food Setvices

603 0 Total Eryenditures

1 100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)

Expend itures

OTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES) :

7915 Transfers In

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances

0100 Fund Balance - Septernber I (Beginning)

3000 Fund Balance - August 3l (Ending)

(s,824)

8,226

8,226 s 23,056 $ t7,232 $ (5,824)

25,000 $

1,200

r32.000

20,000 tl
78,770

I 30,860

18,287 $

78,840

I 15,037

(1,713)
'70

( r 5,823)

r 58,200 229,630 212,164 (t7,466)

214,33'7 23s,937 216,872 r9.065

214,33'7 235,937 216,872 r 9,065

(s6,13',l)

56,137

(6,307)

2t,13'7

(4,70rì)

13,7 t4

1,599

(7,423)

1 4,830

8,226

9,006

8,226
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t
I

P.O. BOX 7832

AMARTLLO, TEXAS 79114

(806) 3s8-8071
(806) 358-8185 FÆ(

MARK lgr E, CPA

KILE & CO., P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND.ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF'

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE \ilITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Booker Independent School District
P.O. Box 288
Booker, Texas 79005

To the Board of Trustees:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Booker Independent
School District as of and for the year ended August 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Booker Independent School District's basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated Febru ary 8, 2021 .

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Booker Independent
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Booker
Independent School District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Booker Independent School District's internal control.

A deJìciency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less

severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identi$, any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Booker Independent School District's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance with
ceftain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the detennination of financial statement atnounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters tlrat are required to be reported under Governntenl Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this repoft is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perforrned in accordance with
Governntent Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and cornpliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Amarillo, Texas
February 8,2021 \,'trs 

(0,/r,
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P.O. BOX7832
AMARILLO,TEXAS 79114

(806) 3s8-8071
(806) 3s8-818s FAX

MARKtrilT F, CPA

KILE & CO., P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Communication with Those Charged with Governance at the Conclusion of the Audit

Board of Trustees
Booker Independent School District
P.O, Box 288
Booker, Texas 79005

To the Board of Trustees:

Vy'e have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregafe remaining fund information of Booker Independent School District for the year ended August
31,2020. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities
under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards as well as certain
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated February 10,2020. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Si gnifi cant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Booker Independent School District are described in Note (l) to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2020. We noted no transactions entered into by Booker Independent School District
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are

based on management's knowledge and experience about past and curent events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was:

Management's estimate of the depreciation expense is based on acceptable methods and
lives. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation
expense in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as

a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Dfficulties Encountered in Perþrnting the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with managernent in performing and completing our
audit.
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Corrected and Uncoruecled Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatement. In addition, none of the misstatements
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or
in the aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken as a whole.

D i s agr e e ments w it h Manage me nt

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course ofour audit.

Manage m en t Repr e s en t at i ons

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated February 8,2021

Management C onsultations w ith Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to Booker Independent School District's financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional
standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the
relevant facts, To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles an<l auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Booker Independent School District's auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied ceftain limited procedures to the RSI statements, which are required supplernentary
information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the infonnation for
consistency with rnanagement's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended
Booker Independent School
than these specified parties.

Amarillo, Texas
February 8,2021

solely for the information and use of board of trustee and management of
District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
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SCHOOLS FIRST OUESTIONNAIRE

BOOKER ISD Fiscal Year 2020

SF'1 Was there an unmodified opinion in theAnnual Financial Report on thefìnancial statements
as a whole? Yes

SF2 Were there any disclosures in the Annual Financial Report and/or other sources of
informatlon concerning nonpayment of any terms of any debt agreement?

SF3 Did the school district make timely payments to the Teachers Retirement System (TRS),

Texas Workforce Commission (TWC), lnternal Rer,enue Servce (lRS), and other gowrnment Yes
agencies? (lf therewas awarrant hold not cleared in 30 days, then not timely.)

SF4 Was the school district issued a warrant hold? (Yes er,en if cleared within 30 days )

No

SF5 Did the Annual Financial Report disclose any instances of material weaknesses in internal

controls orer financial reporting and compliance for local, state or federal funds?

SF6 Was there any disclosure in the Annual Financial Report of material noncompliance for

grants, contracts, and laws related to local, state, or federal funds?

SF7 Did the school district post the required fìnancial information on its website in accordance

with Gorcrnment Code, Local Govenment Code, Texas Education Code, Texas Yes

Administratiw Code and other statutes, laws and rules in effect at the fiscal year end?

SFB Did the school board members discuss the school district's property lalues at a board

meeting within 120 days before the school district adopted its budget? Yes

SFg Total accumulated accretion on CABs included in gorernment-wide fìnanclal statements at

fìscal year end.

No

No

No


